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ANNEX B - LIST OF CIVIL PARTY APPLICATIONS INADMISSIBLE

Interview /

Full Name . Reasons for Inadmissibility Finding Province Cambodian Lawyer Foreign Lawyer
Transcript Ref

o2
8 o o %' 5 UK Yorn 3 The Applicant described the following: ensl of Appli and her husband in 1978 in Takeo Province; imprisonment of Applicant's husband at Kraing Ta Chan and another security centre in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province in Kampot (g Chet Vanl
a - > 8 © “:_C,__ 1978 and his subsequent disappearance. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. po oic © Y
@ § g UK Yi ‘3 The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in 1977 in Takeo Province; imprisonment of Applicant's husband in Kraing Ta Chan and other security centres in Takeo Province in 1978 and his subsequent disappearance. Kampot ‘é Chet Vanl
g 2= e(:‘.":" Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. P ol Y
) %' =) ‘?_’ The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her parents from 1976 in Koh Andaet District, Takeo Province; imprisonment of Applicant's father in Kraing Ta Chan and another security centre in Tram Kak District, =
< > 5 PANG Srey = Takeo Province in 1978 and his subsequent disappearance. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the Kampot < Chet Vanly
a RS K= scope of the Case. ic
faa] ! @©
@ § E KOEM Sook 2 The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant from 1975 in Kampot Province throughout the DK Regime; imprisonment of Applicant's parents at Kraing Ta Chan and another security centre in Takeo Province and their Kampot ‘é Chet Vanl
g 2= ‘('Zl_i‘ subsequent murder in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. P ol v
I g) 2 CHAP En & The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampot Province; imprisonment and disappearance of Applicant's husband and siblings in Kraing Ta Chan security centre in Takeo Province. Whilst it is recognised that Kampot ‘g Chet Vanl
g . E these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. B ol v
i ,
@ § E MAK Vanna Eg The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Takeo Province, throughout the DK Regime; imprisonment and murder of Applicant's father and brother at Kraing Ta Chan security centre in Takeo Province in 1978. Kampot ‘é Chet Vanl
g 2= -c ‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. P ofC ¥
= 5
8 & o 2 . ; . : L o . - : : . :
I g) 2 MEAS Chhil “ The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family throughout the DK Regime; imprisonment of Applicant's parents and siblings at Kraing Ta Chan security centre, Takeo Province and their subsequent Kampot ‘g Chet Vanl
g . E disappearance (unspecified date). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. B oiC Y
o0
a ,
E § E PANG LiHan 'g The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family from 1977 in Takeo Province; disappearance of Applicant's siblings and parents at Kraing Ta Chan security centre (hearsay, unspecified date). Whilst it is Kampot ‘é Chet Vanl
g a2 - recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. H ol v
= z
2 %o & , . . 4 o R . 4 . : 4
@ g) 2 L OK Sarith g The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, throughout the DK Regime, in Kampot and Takeo Provinces; disappearance of Applicant's cousin (unspecified date) and of her father (1978) from Kraing Ta Chan security Kampot ‘g Chet Vanl
g = c centre in Takeo Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. P oiC v
= &
S § g E Nhoun :EP The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province; disappearance of Applicant's parents and sister from Kraing Ta Chan security centre (unspecified dates). Whilst it is recognised that these are Kampot ‘é Chet Vanl
g L= 3 traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. H ol v
g %o K . . . . . . . . L o .
@ g) 2 CHIN Siman i The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family in Takeo Province from 1976 and thereafter; disappearance of Applicant's father from Takeo Province in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are Kampot ‘g Chet Vanl
g = @ traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. P oiC v
= a
@ 0 =] The Applicant described the following: in the VIF, the Applicant stated that her father and her grandparents died due to starvation; that her aunts, her uncles and her cousins were murdered in Kampot Province in 1977 and 1978. In the
g § g HENG Na: E supplementary information dated 2010, she alleged that her grandfather was murdered on accusation of being Vietnamese in Kampot Province. Finally, in the supplementary information dated 2013, the Applicant stated that her grandfather, Kampot ‘é Chet Vanl
= L= M = her father her cousins, her aunt and uncle were murdered at the Durian Plantation in Prey Nop District, Kampong Som Province in 1978. In these conditions and given the inconsistency of the information, the Applicant does not establish P oiC ¥
= - g that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.
3 P 2
3 g) 5 OUCH Sak g The Applicant described the following: in the VIF, the Applicant stated that her siblings were murdered in Takeo and Pursat Provinces. In the supplementary information, she stated that her siblings were murdered at Bet Trang worksite in K 2 (g Chet Vanl
g 4 g om - early 1978. Given the inconsistency of the information, the Applicant does not establish that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged. ampo ol et vanly
- ()
o . @ In the VIF, the Applicant described the following: forced labour; inhumane living conditions; the murder of Applicant’s four brothers in Kampot Province, the death of Applicant’s brother, sister, father and grandfather due to illness in
S § E PRUM S :g Kampot Province, and death by drowning of Applicant’s brother in Kampot Province. In the supplementary information, she stated that all of her aforementioned family members, including her aunts and uncles, were sent to the Durian K . ‘é Chet Vanl
= &+ =2 amon - plantation and disappeared from there. In addition, the Applicant was born in 1975 and it is not credible that she was forced to work. Given the inconsistency of the information provided by the Applicant, it is not established that it is more Ampo S A
=) - &= likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.
2 9D~ = The Applicant described the following: enslavement, inhumane living condition and other inhumane acts in Kampong Trach District, Kampot Province. The Applicant witnessed the rape of women who worked in her mobile unit by the unit
% 2 F Pp g > g pong 3 P! pp P Yy <
< > § MEAS Sean o chief; forced disappearance of her uncle and her father in 1978 in Kampot Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as  Kampot & Chet Vanly
a NS % they fall outside of the scope of the Case. =
X (%2} " e icant described the following: enslavement, other inhumane acts at various locations, inhumane living conditions and persecution o am 1n Iram istrict, Takeo Province; imprisonment and disappearance of her husband at
3 uI)N 5 The Appl described the foll g 1 ther inh 1 hy living cond; d p f Ch: Tram Kak D: Takeo P: P! d disapp f her husband =
< > § DOEK Seuyas w2 Kraing Ta Chan security centre in September 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of ~ Kampot < Chet Vanly
2 NS E the Case. i
w3
> %' ~ E The Applicant described her forced marriage in 1978, as the Applicant was born in 1967 this is not credible, unless a mistake on her ID card regarding her birthdate is established. In her VIF, she stated that her uncles were murdered in ©
< > § MAO Sophal 2 Kampot Province in 1977, while in the supplementary information, she alleged that her uncles were murdered at the Durian plantation, in Kampong Som Province in 1978. Given these inconsistencies, it can not be established that it is more ~ Kampot < Chet Vanly
a S o likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged. s
3 %' o fé The Applicant described working in Phnom Penh, printing newspapers and magazines; enslavement in 1978 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; death of Applicant's father in 1975 due to inadequate medical care (unspecified location); =2
< > § MEAS Un 2 murder of Applicant's brothers in 1978 in Prey Veng Province in unclear circumstances; disappearance of Applicant's other relatives in Prey Veng Province. Whilst this is traumatising, itdoes not relate to any matter which would permit the Prey Veng "=, Chet Vanly
a g e 5] Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. =
S
& S g,, The Applicant described the following: ensl of Appli and other int acts at various worksites in Prey Veng Province; murders of Applicant's uncle, two daughters, a son-in-law, brother-in-law; forced marriage of Applicant's =2
< %' HEL Oun 2 daughter; brother-in-law was a soldier he understands was purged and imprisoned at S-21. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined Prey Veng "=, Chet Vanly
a > 5 as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. =
)
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other acts at Prey Veng Province from 1975-1979; murder of Applicant's sister in-law and three nieces/nephews in Prey Veng Province in 1976 (persecution of the
Vietnamese); imprisonment of Applicant's older brother in Prey Veng Province in 1978 (husband of the Vietnamese wife and children taken away in 1976); disappearance of another of the Applicant's siblings-in-law and their children from
Prey Veng Province; disappearance of two of Applicant's brothers-in-law from Pursat Province in 1977; murder of another of Applicant's brother and sister-in-law and four nieces/nephews in Pursat Province in 1975. Based on the VIF and
Supplementary Information, the facts are inconsistent and it cannot be concluded that it is more likely than not to be true that the Applicant suffered as a result of one of the crimes charged. In addition, the facts fall outside of the scope of the
Case

The Applicant described the following: Applicant's brother was a soldier in 1975-1978 in Division 4, stationed in Kandal Province; enslavement of Applicant's brother in Kampong Chhnang airfield, and subsequent murder in 1978;
Applicant's other brothers were also killed at the airfield. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant's husband (a Division 4 soldier) at Kampong Chhnang airfield in 1978 and subsequent murder; the Applicant's brothers were equally killed there. Whilst it is recognised that
these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case File.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's brothers in Bakan District, Pursat Province in late 1978; death of Applicant's parents due to exhaustion, subsequent to the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant's sister and brother-in-law, and other inhumane acts in Kandieng District, Pursat Province at unspecified time during the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's brother-in-law at
Srae Sdok Commune, Kandieng District, Pursat Province at unspecified time during the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's sister in Cheung Pleung Commune, Bakan District, Pursat Province at unspecified time during the DK Regime;
murder of Applicant's three nieces and one nephew at Boeng Bat Kandaol Commune, Bakan District, at unspecified time during the DK Regime; enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts at Pratheat Commune, Kampong Trabaek
District, Prey Veng Province throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as the
Application falls out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment of Applicant's brother-in-law at S-21 in 1975; enslavement in 1975 until 1978 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; impri and disappearance of Applicant's parents in 1976

(unspecified location); death of Applicant's older sister after giving birth in 1976 in Bakan District; murder of Applicant's brothers in 1977 in Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established
that it is more likely than not to be true that he suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: death by starvation of Applicant's father and her younger brother in mid-1976 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; murder of her uncle and her four cousins and death by illness of her aunt in-law in
Battambang District, Battambang Province; forced marriage, enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant at Battambang District, Battambang and Kampong Speu Provinces in 1978; murder of her husband, the chief of a
Regiment, in S-21 (her husband was arrested in Battambang Province in 1977). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil
Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement throughout the DK Regime in Pursat Province; imprisonment, ill-treatment and murder of Applicant's parents at Kbal Chheu Puk security center, Pursat Province in 1978; murder of
Applicant's uncle at S-21 in Phnom Penh. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the material scope of
the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Siem Reap Province; murder of Applicant's husband in 1977 in Siem Reap Province; imprisonment and ill-treatment, and eventually death in Phnom Penh of Applicant's brother,
assigned to drive soldiers in Kampong Speu Province in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kandal Province in 1976 and in 1978 in Phnom Penh; he was later assigned to work as a soldier in Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Svay Rieng Province, after which the Applicant left Cambodia. The Applicant also describes what happened to various family members in Prey Veng Province. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kok Krem Village, Vihear Thom Commune, Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that this is traumatising, the facts
described do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and going through other inhumane acts at various locations in Kampong Cham Province from 1975 onwards; the murder of her older brother in 1976, the attempted murder of her
in 1977; being forced to marry in 1977, in Vihear Thom Commune, Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts at various locations in Kampong Siem and Chamkar Leu Districts, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations in Kampong Siem and Prey Chhor Districts, Kampong Cham Province; disappearance of Applicant's sister in 1976 (unknown location) and brother in Krala Commune,
Kampong Siem District in 1977; death of Applicant's sister in law in Krala Commune, thereafter. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family in Chamkar Leu District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's brother, in Kang Meas District, Kampong Cham
Province in 1977; murder of Applicant's brother in S-21; murder of Applicant's sister in-law in 1978 in Prey Chhor District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate
to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations in Prey Chhor District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's father in Prey Chhor District in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that
these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations in Kampong Cham Province; disappearance of Applicant's brothers, one of whom was a RAK soldier purged to Wat Angkuonh Dei in 1978, and the other disappeared
in 1977 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 003). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant from 1976-1978 in various places including Kapong Siem District, in Kampong Cham Province; forced marriage of Applicant in 1978 in Kampong Siem District. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murders of her uncles during the DK Regime in Wat Phnom Pros in Kampong Cham Province. The Applicant, however, was born after the DK Regime. While the knowledge of what happened during the Regime
may be traumatising, it is not satisfied that she has suffered harm as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province from 1976 onwards; disappearance of siblings and brother-in-law in unspecified circumstances; murder of
Applicant's brother, a former Lon Nol soldier, at S-21 in 1979. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of
the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's husband in 1975 in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; death of Applicant's mother in 1978 in Kampong Siem District (these facts were clarified during the
interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's father in-law in 1977 in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; death of her uncles, transferred from Kampong Siem District to Kampong Thom Province;
enslavement of Applicant throughout the DK Regime in Kampong Siem District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's brother (unspecified location) in 1978; disappearance of Applicant's other
brother in Chub plantation (unspecified time); forced marriage of Applicant in 1977, supposedly in Kampong Siem District. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that he suffered as a
consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Chamkar Leu District, Kampong Cham Province from 1975; murder of Applicant's great aunt's family in 1977 in Phnom Pros, Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham
Province; imprisonment and ill-treatment of Applicant's father in 1975 in Kampong Siem and Chamkar Leu District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant
to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province from 1975; disappearance of Applicant's younger brother and his family at Phnom Pros in 1976; disappearance of Applicant's
brothers, RAK soldiers, in unknown circumstances. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that he suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts committed against Applicant and her family in Kang Meas District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would
permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Chamkar Leu and Kampong Siem Districts, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's child and grandchildren in 1977 in Kampong Cham Province.
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various places in Chamkar Leu and Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's brother from Kampong Siem District in
1977; forced marriage of Applicant in 1977 in Kampong Siem District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; disappearances of two of the Applicant's brothers, one a village chief, who was taken
in Wat Angkuonh Dei in 1977 and the other, a RAK soldier, who disappeared in Wat Phnom Pros in 1977 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 003). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing
events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate
to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement throughout the DK Regime in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; disappearance and murder of various family members of the Applicant, at unclear times. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province throughout the DK Regime; forced marriage of Applicant in 1977 in Kampong Siem District. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and went through other inhumane acts at various locations throughout the DK Regime in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; that he was forced into marriage in
1977 in Kampong Siem District; the murders of his father and brother in Kampong Siem District and his cousin in Prey Chhor District, Kampong Cham Province (these facts were clarified during the interviews of the Applicant in Case 004).
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Chamkar Leu and Kampong Siem Districts, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of her husband in 1977 (unknown location). Whilst it is recognised
that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment and murder of Applicant's two brothers and her sister in-law at S-21 after they had been in charge of logistics between Kratie and Phnom Penh. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatizing events, the details provided are insufficient to ensure that the facts relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's husband in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province in 1977. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she
suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; imprisonment in Wat Angkuonh Dei in 1978 and subsequent murder of Applicant's father at Phnom
Pros, Kampong Siem District; murders of her grandfather and three uncles. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's father and two uncles (in Tuol Beng, Kampong Siem District) on accusation of being Vietnamese in 1977 in Kampong Cham Province; enslavement of Applicant in Kampong
Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts at various locations in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murders of Applicant's two brothers, their wives and
children, one in 1976 at Kok Pring execution site, Kampong Siem District, the other in 1977 in Kampong Siem District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the
Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment, ill-treatment and enslavement; murder of Applicant's two siblings and their five children in 1976, all in Kampot Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they
do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: forced labour; the murder of his brother-in-law, uncle and aunt in Kampong Cham Province, in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that the knowledge of ill-treatment and loss of family member are
traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. In particular, the Application falls out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's two brothers in Phnom Pros, Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province in 1976; enslavement and inhumane living conditions at Angkor Chey District, Kampot Province.
Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment and murder of her siblings in S-21 (no clear timeframe), after they had served in the RAK; enslavement of Applicant in Prey Chhor District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK
Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts at various locations in Chamkar Leu and Kampong Siem Districts, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's aunt and her two
children. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Siem and Chamkar Leu Districts, Kampong Cham Province throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's cousin in Chamkar Leu District. Whilst it is recognised
that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, his parents and siblings in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's parents due to starvation, illness and
inadequate medical care. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Siem and Chamkar Leu Districts, Kampong Cham Province (Applicant, throughout the DK Regime) and Kampong Chhnang Province (her husband in 1977); imprisonment
and ill-treatment of Applicant, her husband and her sisters (1976); murder of Applicant's sisters. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour and imprisoned from 1975 until 1977 in Krouch Kor security centre; ill-treatment in Prey Chhor District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; being forced into
marriage in 1978 in Prey Chhor District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter
which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's mother from Srey Santhor District, Kampong Cham Province in 1976; disappearance of Applicant's uncles and aunts in unknown circumstances. While the VIF states that
the Applicant's mother told his grandfather that she would be transferred to Kampong Som Province, it is not established that she actually was transferred, or where she disappeared from. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established
that it is more likely than not to be true that he suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the murder of her uncles in Kampong Cham Province; forced marriage of her siblings in 1977 and the death of her parents due to starvation in 1977 in Stueng Trang District.
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; the disappearance of her uncles in 1976 in Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it clearly recognised that being subjected to
hard work and the loss of family members are traumatising events for Applicant, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party.her. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Krala Commune, Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's brother, a RAK soldier in Trapeang Tras
Village, Krala Commune, in 1977. Whilst it is recognized that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the
Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the murder of her father in Batheay District, Kampong Cham Province, in 1976. Whilst it clearly recognised that being subjected to hard work and the loss of family members are
traumatising events for Applicant, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the persecution on religious ground against Cham in Krouch Chmmar District and Stuung Trang District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of her siblings in Tboung Khmum District, Kampong Cham Province, in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that the loss of family member is a traumatising event for her the facts provided do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the murder of her father and uncles in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the murder of her father, and brothers in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that the loss of family members is traumatising, the facts
provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised this was traumatic, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant
to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the murder of her father and brother in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that the loss of family member is a traumatising event for the
Applicant, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and being forced into marriage; the death of her father due to starvation in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; and the murder of her aunt's family. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following events: enslavement in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; death by illness of Applicant's father in 1975 in Kampong Siem District; imprisonment and
murder of Applicant's husband in Angkuonh Dei Security Centre, Kampong Siem District, and sent to S-21 in 1977; murder of Applicant's brothers (no clear timeframe and location). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events,
the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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< > § SOS Mousteut ot Applicant; disappearance of Applicant's cousin; murder of Applicant's older brothers and father in 1978. Persecution of the Cham in Kampong Cham; the Applicant and his family are Cham. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising ~ Kampong Cham -z Kim Mengkhy Martine Jacquin
a = & e events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. ,é
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The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's younger brother due to starvation; disappearance of Applicant's cousin and uncle; enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the
DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's younger sister and her husband in 1977 in Kampong Siem District.
Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; disappearance of Applicant's husband in 1977 from Kampong Siem District; disappearance of Applicant's father, two
younger brothers, two nephews and two nieces. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the
Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's husband in Angkor Chey District, Kampot Province in 1976; enslavement of Applicant in 1975-76 at an unclear location. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her parents in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province and Kratie Province; murder of Applicant's father at Tuol Beng and murder of Applicant's father-in-law
in 1977, both in Kampong Siem District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's uncle and great uncle at Phnom Pros, Kampong Siem District, in
1976. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; disappearance of Applicant's father and uncle in 1978 at Phnom Pros, Kampong Siem District. Whilst it is recognised
that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant's mother in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's father in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province
in 1976. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant was forced to overwork in Kampong Chhnang and Kampot Provinces. His father died of starvation and lack of medical care and his three siblings were murdered. Whilst it is recognised that the death of his father and murders
of his siblings are traumatising events, the facts described in the Application do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the territorial scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death by starvation and inadequate medical care of his brother and his grandfather; disappearance of his uncle and forced marriage of his sister; imprisonment, enslavement and inhumane living
conditions in Kampong Chhnang Province. The Applicant was part of the militia and imprisoned in 1977, upon accusation of being a Lon Nol soldier in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do
not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province from 1975 onwards; murder of Applicant's grandfather in Kampong Svay District in 1977; death of Applicant's brother
and his family in Baray District, Kampong Thom Province in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside
of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment and murder of Applicant's siblings in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province in 1977 and enslavement of Applicant at various locations in Kampong Thom Province
throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's son in 1976 at Wat Srange, Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom
Province; disappearance of Applicant's other son in Santuk District, Kampong Thom Province in 1977; forced marriage of Applicant in unspecified circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to
any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at unspecified time in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province; murder of Applicant's mother (unspecified time) and siblings (1976) in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom
Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province (unspecified time); disappearance of Applicant's brother (unspecified location/time). Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's brother at an unknown location in 1976; enslavement in Kampong Thom Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events,
they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's mother in 1976 in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province; enslavement at various locations in Baray District, Kampong Thom Province in 1976. Whilst it is recognised
that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Thom Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and inhumane living conditions in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's brother and sister-in-law from Phnom Penh.
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's two brothers in Koh Thom District, Kandal Province in 1975; murder of Applicant's mother in S-21 security centre; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living
conditions of Applicant and his grandparents in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit
the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described how she and her family were forcibly transferred and forced to work in Siem Reap Province, the murder of her mother at S-21 and her grandparents. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do
not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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E § g BUT Hap g The Ap]lal.icam described the following: murder of App]ilcant's older brther; imprifonment of Applicam's (.;o.usin and his family; ensllavement, all in Stoung District, Kampong Thom Province in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are Remmeny Tem § Kim Mengkhy i dria
= = (':.:: traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. oc
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2 % = g The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's sibling, a former RAK soldier in 1977; murder of her father in Prasat Ballangk District, Kampong Thom Province in 1975; enslavement of Applicant's children and older brother o4
< > ér CHHOET Pen / Pay e throughout the DK Regime in Kampong Thom Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall Kampong Thom 'g Kim Mengkhy Martine Jacquin
a =58 3 outside of the scope of the Case. ol
2 %‘ g !E:“ The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in 1975; death due to starvation of Applicant's parents in 1976; murder of Applicant's two uncles, all in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province in 1976. Whilst it is &
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= = ch recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. oc
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z &= =) purged RAK soldier. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. g
A %' < % The Applicant described the following: imprisonment, ill-treatment and subsequent death due to inadequate medical care of Applicant's husband; enslavement of Applicant in Prasat Sambour and Kampong Svay Districts, Kampong Thom o4
g > § CHUON Oeurn - Province in 1975; murder of Applicant's younger sibling-in-law in 1976. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall Kampong Thom ’é Kim Mengkhy Martine Jacquin
a = =33 outside of the scope of the Case. °ic
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o g 2 DIT Khoeun g The Appllcalm dcscrlbc?d the followllng. dlsappc‘:arancc of Applicant's parcfms at Wat Srange, Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which o T _g Kim Mengkhy D Jrsantn
z &= e would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. o
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o g T HAM Khoeun =2 The Applllcam described t(he follow@g. enslavemént in 1976l1rl1 Kampong Svay DlSlrlCT, Kampong Thom Province; death of her father due to starvation. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any Remmeny Tem ,é i ity (Vo e Jrmtin
= = g matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. oc
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z &= S that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. g
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¥ g  HAV Chou = The Applicant defcfrlbed the follm}vmg.} erfsla\l/emem afld starvation of Applicant's mother in Kamp.mng Svay District, Kampong (?ham Province until 1979; murder of Applicant's uncle (unspecified circumstances). Whilst it is recognised that Remmeny Tem ,é i ity (Vo e Jrmtin
= = 5 these are traumatising events, the identifying information of the Applicant state that she was born in July 1979, after the DK Regime. oc
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z &= P would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. g
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o g 2 N Soeun 2 The Applicant descrl?)ed the fo(llov(vu.lg. murdtar of Applicant's cousin m.Wat Srange security centre, Kampong Svay Dls'trlct, Kampong lThom Proymce in 19.77.’ murder of }Ter older brother at Wat srange security centre (unspecified date); Remmeny Tem ,é i ity (Vo e Jrmtin
A ¢ 8 ] enslavement of Applicant. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. oc
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2 % = =) The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's husband in 1976 in Wat Srange security centre, Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province, her father and her older sister in Sedan District, Kampong Thom Province; o4
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her husband in Kampong Chhnang Province throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's husband in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's older brother in 1977 from Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province; enslavement and forced marriage of Applicant in Kampong Svay District in 1976. Whilst it
is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province; murder of Applicant's two cousins in 1978 (unspecified location). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's sibling-in-law in Kampong Thom Province; disappearance of
Applicant's uncle and his two children. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Santuk District, Kampong Thom Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of his mother at Wat Srange security centre, Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom
Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's siblings in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province in 1976 and 1977; enslavement of Applicant. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts at various locations throughout the DK Regime; forced marriage in 1976; murder of Applicant's brother; disappearance of her husband, all in Kampong Thom
Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described enslavement and inhumane living conditions in Kratie Province. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes
charged.

The Applicant described the murder of her uncle's family and her two cousins and her enslavement in Dambae District, Kampong Cham Province in 1977, Phnom Penh in 1978 and Kratie Province. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be
established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's uncles at Tboung Khmum District, Kampong Cham Province in 1976; disappearance of her younger sister from Kratie Province in 1977; enslavement and inhumane living
conditions of Applicant in Kratie Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of her mother and niece, death of her father due to starvation; enslavement and inhumane living conditions in Kratie Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate
to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the imprisonment and murder of her uncle, aunt-in-law and her husband, and murder of her two younger brothers-in-law in Kratie Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate
to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's mother, two brothers and sister at Prey Chhor District, Kampong Cham Province in 1977; murder of Applicant's brother-in-law in Svay Rieng Province; enslavement and
inhumane living conditions of Applicant at Chamkar Leu District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil
Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of her father; enslavement and inhumane living conditions in Kratie Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant
to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the enslavement, forced marriage and inhumane living conditions at Mondulkiri Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant
to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. Her husband and son's disappearances in 1973 and 1974 respectively, fall outside of the temporal scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and to marry in Mondulkiri Province, and the disappearance of his mother and brother. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts provided
by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. In particular, the Application falls out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the imprisonment and ill-treatment of her husband at S-21 and his murder at Cheung Ek in 1977. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a
consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the imprisonment and ill-treatment of her father at S-21 and his murder at Cheung Ek in 1977. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a
consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour at various locations in Svay Rieng Province and Bakan District, Pursat Province throughout the DK Regime; the murders of his uncle, a former Lon Nol official, brothers (1975)
and other family members; the imprisonment of his cousin in Trach Kroal in late 1978 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for the Applicant,
they do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: forced transfer of Applicant from Kandal Province to Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1975; enslavement of Applicant and his family in Bakan District; death of his father due to starvation and
overwork in 1978; disappearance of Applicant's sister in 1978 in Bakan District; disappearance of Applicant's brother in 1975. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the
Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

Disappearance and murder of Applicant's parents in Prey Veng Province in 1974; murder of father-in-law in Kampong Cham Province in 1978; two brothers in 1977, and other family members from Prey Veng Province; forced marriage of
Applicant in Prey Veng Province in April 1977 or April 1978 (these facts were clarified during the hearing in Case 002 by the Applicant). Although it is recognised that the disappearance of loved ones and forced marriage are traumatising
events, the facts described in the Application fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: forced transfer of the Applicant and her family from Kandal Province to Pursat Province in 1976; imprisonment of Applicant in Thkaol SC (around mid-1976 until 1978), Boeung Kul SC (late 1978)
and Trach Kraol SC (late 1978 until 1979); enslavement of Applicant at various locations in Bakan District, Pursat Province from 1976 until 1979; imprisonment and murder Applicant's husband in Thkaol SC in Bakan District in 1976; death
of Applicant's daughter due to illness in Kandal Province in late 1975 and her son in Kandieng Hospital, Kandieng District, Pursat Province in 1976 (the descriptions were clarified during the Applicant's hearing in Case 002). While this is
traumatising, the facts described do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant as a Civil Party. In particular, they fall outside the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's parents, siblings, sisters-in-law, nieces and nephews in Preah Net Preah District, Banteay Meanchey Province in 1978; enslavement throughout the DK Regime and forced
marriage of Applicant in 1976, both in Preah Net Preah District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of
the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour at various locations in Prey Veng Province and Bakan District, Pursat Province throughout the DK Regime; the murder of his sisters; forced marriage; imprisonment in Svay Rieng in
1978; attempted murder in Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1978 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant
do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment of Applicant's brother in 1977 in Rumlech Pagoda, Bakan District, Pursat Province and of another brother, assistant of the Northwest Zone cadres, in 1977 in Battambang Province.
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's sister and her daughters due to starvation in 1976 in Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province; murder of Applicant's in-laws and cousins in Bakan District, Pursat Province, in
1976; murder of Applicant's brother-in-law in 1978 in Moung Ruessei District; death of Applicant's siblings due to starvation (unstated location/time); murder of Applicant's aunt and uncle (unstated location) in 1976. Whilst it is recognised
that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described being forced to carry out hard labour; the murder of her brother, uncle and aunt in Pursat and Battambang Provinces. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the death of family members is a traumatising event for her,
the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit herto be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described being forced to carry hard labour and to get married, the disappearance of her husband and the death of her parents and siblings in Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1978. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the
death of family member is a traumatising event for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit herto be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described being forced to carry out hard labour, the death of his sister due to starvation and the murder of his father and brother in Pursat Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him,
the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's father in Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1975; enslavement of Applicant throughout the DK Regime in Bakan District, Pursat Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various work sites in Svay Rieng Province; murders of Applicant's husband and siblings. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which
would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations in Svay Rieng throughout the DK Regime. The Applicant also described the disappearance and death of various family members (in unspecified circumstances). Whilst
it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations in Prey Veng and Svay Rieng Provinces, throughout the DK Regime; death and disappearance of various family members in these locations and others (unclear).
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: purge of the applicant, a former RAK soldier, in 1977; forced transfer of Applicant's family from Svay Rieng Province to Pursat Province in 1977; murder of his brother, his brother in-law, his uncle and
his aunts at Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province in 1977. These facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 003. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family in Svay Rieng Province until 1978 and in Pursat Province from then onwards; forced transfer of Applicant and his family from Svay Rieng to Pursat Province in
1978; death of Applicant's parents and siblings (unclear locations and times). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they
fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of his parent, siblings and grandparents in Bakan District, Pursat Province in early 1978; being forced into hard labour at various locations in Kampong Leav District Prey Veng Province from 1976 until
1977 and Bakan District from 1977 until 1979; being forcibly transferred with his family from Prey Veng Province to Pursat Province in 1977 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family in Svay Rieng Province; the Applicant described that he was sent to work at a Wat Preatheat, which he locates in Svay Rieng Province, and the deaths of
various relatives, without description of the circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the
territorial scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour in Svay Rieng Province, the murder of his father in Svay Chrum District, Svay Rieng Province, in 1975, the imprisonment of his uncle in-law in Svay Rieng Province, in 1977
and the forced transfer to Pursat Province and subsequent disappearance of his aunts and their children to Pursat Province, in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to
any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the disappearance of her father, a former Lon Nol soldier; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions in Svay Rieng and Prey Veng Provinces. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of her father, her husband, a former Lon Nol soldier and her older brother; enslavement at various locations, forced marriage and inhumane living conditions in Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the enslavement at various work sites and inhumane living conditions; murder of her husband, her brother and death of her older sister due to illness and lack of medical treatment and forced marriage of her cousin in
Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the territorial scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and imprisonment in Svay Rieng Province of Applicant and her husband until 1976 and of Applicant and her daughters from 1976 onwards in Moung Ruessei District, Pursat Province;
forced transfer to Moung Ruessei District in 1976 or 1978; death of Applicant's daughter due to starvation in 1978 in Moung Ruessei District; death of Applicant's brother in 1975 (unknown circumstances) and father in 1977 (unspecified
location). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's mother and his older sister in Prey Veng Province; imprisonment and murder of his father in Svay Rieng Province; imprisonment and disappearance of his siblings in Svay Rieng
Province; murder of his younger siblings, his sibling-in-law and his niece/nephew in Pursat Province in 1978; enslavement; imprisonment and ill-treatment of Applicant in Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's wife and his child due to inadequate medical care at Svay Rieng Province; death of his three children and his mother due to starvation and inadequate medical care in Moung
Reussei District in 1978; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions of Applicant. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the imprisonment, ill-treatment and murder of his older brother; imprisonment, ill-treatment and enslavement at various locations in Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events,
they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts at various locations, and forced marriage in 1977 in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province; his sister and brother, former RAK soldiers, were arrested
and killed. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family at various locations in Kampong Siem and Chamkar Leu Districts in Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's brother
probably in Phnom Pros (unspecified date). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant at various locations in Prey Chhor District in Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's husband due to exhaustion and illness in 1976; death
of Applicant's child due to illness in 1977; disappearance of Applicants two brothers, RAK soldiers, in unknown circumstances. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a
consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment of Applicant in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province in 1976; enslavement at various locations in Kampong Siem District, throughout the DK Regime; forced marriage of
Applicant in 1978 in Kampong Siem District; disappearance of Applicant's brothers in unknown circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to
be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Tbaung Khnum District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's father in Tbaung Khnum District in 1977. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Chamkar Leu District, Kampong Cham Province; one of the Applicant's cousins was arrested and sent to Prey Toteung and a brother was killed. The circumstances and dates are not laid
out. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; murder of her cousin's children in Memot District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murders of family members, forced marriage and forced labour in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour at various locations in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province throughout the DK Regime; the murder of her uncle and brother in 1977 in Kampong Siem District; the death
of her father due to starvation and illness in 1976 in Kampong Siem District; and forced marriage in late 1977 in Kampong Siem District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised
that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family and other inhumane acts at various locations in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's brother
in 1977 in Kampong Siem District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's husband in 1976 in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; forced marriage of Applicant in Kampong Siem District in 1976. Whilst it is recognised that these
are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Siem and Chamkar Leu Districts, Kampong Cham Province, in 1976 and 1977; death of Applicant's mother in 1976 (unspecified location); murder of Applicant's brother in
1976 (no location); disappearance of Applicant's cousin in 1976 (untold location). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as
they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment of Applicant's husband in Tuol Beng Security Centre in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, under control of the Southwest Zone cadres; enslavement in Kampong Siem
District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party,
as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in 1978 in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; disappearance of Applicant's brother at an unclear location and unspecified time. Whilst it is recognised that
these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of the Applicant and her family throughout the DK Regime in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; disappearance of her uncles and various other family members in 1977 in
Kampong Thom Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant does not describe what happened to him or his family after 1975. The facts described in the victim information form and supplementary information form do not establish that it is more likely than not to be true that the
Applicant suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Chamkar Leu and Kampong Siem Districts, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of her brother and sister-in-law in 1975 in Kampong Cham
Province; imprisonment and murder of another brother at S-21 security centre in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party,
as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the disappearance of his sister and her family; and murder of his father in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that the loss of family
members is traumatising for the Applicant, the facts he provided do not relate to any matter which would permit his admission to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province; murder of her husband, her brother's family at Phnom Pros, Kampong Siem District in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that
these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations of Applicant and his wife in Kampong Siem and Stung Trang Districts, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; imprisonment and disappearance of his
two siblings in Kampong Cham Province in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of
the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's sister, brother-in-law and niece at Wat Au Trakuon security centre, Kang Meas District, Kampong CHam Province in 1977; murder of Applicant's uncle's family, enslavement and
inadequate medical care of Applicant in Kang Meas District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party,
as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death due to illness of Applicant's father in 1975; death due to starvation and inadequate medical care of Applicant's mother in 1977; imprisonment, ill-treatment and murder of Applicant's two cousins
in 1976 in Prey Chhor District, Kampong Cham Province; imprisonment of her husband in 1977; enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Chamkar Leu District, Kampong Cham Province from 1977 onwards. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced marriage in 1976, enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these
are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in and Chamkar Leu District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kratie; Applicant's brother was sent to be a soldier in Kampong Siem District Kampong Cham Province and disappeared in 1977. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established
that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the disappearance of Applicant's husband and son; enslavement of her cousin at Kampong Chhnang Airport; enslavement in Kampong Chhnang Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events,
they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the death by illness of his father and murder of his mother; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions in Kampong Chhnang Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events,
they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of her siblings; death by starvation and inadequate medical care of her father. enslavement and inhumane living conditionsin Kampong Chhnang Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the territorial scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced marriage of Applicant's sister in 1976; murder of Applicant's sister in 1975; death of Applicant's son due to starvation in 1976; enslavement, all in Kampong Speu Province. While the Applicant
describes being forced to carry out labour in Kampong Speu Province in 1975-76, he also claims to have been transferred to Pursat and Battambang Provinces in 1975. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts at various locations in Kampong Thom Province throughout the DK Regime; disappearance and murder of Applicant's two sons, one was a RAK soldier and
disappeared in 1977 from Phnom Penh, the other died of illness (from the Case 003 interview, it does not appear that he was a messenger for the CPK). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate
to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province until 1977 when she stepped on a landmine; murder of Applicant's brother an unspecified time & location and in unspecified
circumstances; death of Applicant's father at unspecified time & location and in unknown circumstances. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of
the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province throughout the DK Regime; forced marriage of Applicant's sister (unknown location & time); murder of Applicant's husband
(unknown time), in Kampong Svay District; death of Applicant's son in unknown circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family in various locations in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province and Kampong Cham Province throughout the DK Regime; imprisonment and murder
of Applicant's husband, and in-laws in Wat Srange in late 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of
the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced marriage of Applicant in 1977 in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province; murder of Applicant's brother in 1976 at unknown location. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's grandparents and nephew at Wat Srange in 1977; imprisonment of Applicant's uncle in Wat Srange in 1977; forced marriage of Applicant's aunt (unspecified
location/time); enslavement of Applicant in Baray District, Kampong Thom Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party,
as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant was forced to over work in Siem Reap Province. Her husband was murdered and she was thereafter forced to remarry in 1978. Her sister was also forced to marry (unknown time and location). Whilst it is recognised that the
death of her husband, and her forced marriage are traumatising events, the facts described in the Application do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the territorial scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family in Santuk District in Kampong Thom Province in 1976-1977; forced marriage (unknown time/location). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's brother in Takeo Province (unspecified date); death of Applicant's father due to starvation and disease in Takeo Province in 1977; enslavement of Applicant and her father in
Takeo Province; murder of Applicant's brother in 1977 in Takeo Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's father at Wat Srange, Kampong Thom Province (unclear time 1976-77); murder of her mother; ill-treatment, enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in
Kampong Thom Province throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope
of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province in 1975; murder of her brother and uncle in Kampong Thom Province in 1975. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Cheung Prey District, Kampong Cham and Kampong Thom Provinces, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's uncles, aunts in-
law and three cousins in 1975 in Kampong Thom Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the
scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment and murder at Prey Sar Prison (S-22) in Phnom Penh in late 1978; enslavement and inhumane living conditions from 1978 onwards near Thipakdei mountain (these facts were clarified
during the interview of the Applicant and his public testimony in Case 002); murder of Applicant's husband, at S-21 security centre. In the Case 002 testimony, the Applicant clarified that her husband was no longer a RAK soldier when he
was sent to S-21. While these are traumatic events, these facts do not fall within the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her children in Kampong Thom Province; murder of her husband in 1975 at Wat Srange security centre, Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment and murder of Applicant's husband, a RAK soldier, in Phnom Penh. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would
permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described enslavement; imprisonment, ill-treatment and murder of her older brother in Kratie Province. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a
consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour in Kampong Cham Province, and the murder of his father-in-law in Kratie Province in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these events are traumatising for her, the facts provided
by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's father in 1975 from Kampong Cham Province; imprisonment and murder of Applicant's mother and murder of her aunt in 1978 at Kampong Siem District, Kampong Cham
Province; inhumane living conditions of Applicant. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of
the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's uncle in Kratie Province; murder of another uncle in 1977 and death by starvation and illness of her mother in 1978 in Kandal Stung District, Kandal Province; imprisonment and
murder of Applicant's husband and younger sister in Kratie Province; enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Kratie Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter
which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment, ill-treatment and enslavement of Applicant's husband, a RAK soldier; murder of her father in-law; enslavement and inhumane living conditions in Kratie Province. Whilst it is recognised
that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the imprisonment and disappearance of her parents, siblings and husband; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions in Mondulkiri Province. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be
established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the death by illness, and starvation of her daughter and her mother; the imprisonment, ill-treatment and murder of her husband and three children; enslavement and inhumane living conditions in Mondulkiri
Province. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment, ill-treatment and murder of Applicant's father at Tboung Khmom District, Kampong Cham Province in 1975; murder of Applicant's aunt, uncle, aunt in-law and her cousins at Tbaung
Khmum District; disappearance of her uncle from Punhea Krek District, Kampong Cham Province; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Kampong Thma Commune, Santuk District, Kampong
Thom Province from 1976 until 1979. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Moung Reussei District, Battambang Province; murder of her parents, her brothers, her sisters in-law and other
relatives in Pursat Province in late 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced transfer of Applicant and her family from Prey Veng Province to Pursat Province; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions of Applicant; murder of Applicant's parents,
siblings and grandmother in Svay Daun Keo Commune, Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of her husband, death by starvation and illness of her two children and disappearance of her three children at Moung Ruessei District in 1977; enslavement at various locations and inhumane
living condition of Applicant in Moung Ruessei District, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party,
as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced to serve as a soldier in Division 105; enslavement; forced marriage in 1977 and inhumane living conditions in Kratie and Mondulkiri Provinces; murder of his two uncles in Takeo Province in
1975. The public testimony in Case 002 was taken into account. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they
fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described the murder of his brother; the ill-treatment and murder of his aunt's family; enslavement; forced marriage; he was also forced to serve as a soldier and fight against the Vietnamese; inhumane living conditions in
Mondulkiri Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the territorial scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death by starvation of Applicant's father and siblings in Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1977 and 1978; forced marriage of Applicant at unspecified location in 1976. Whilst it is recognised that these
are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described the enslavement and deaths of his siblings by starvation in Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1977. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the death of family member is a traumatising event for him, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment of Applicant and his family in 1978 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; murder of his daughter in 1978 in Bakan District; murder of Applicant's brother and cousin in Bakan District in
1979. It is not clear whether, at the time of his arrest, the Applicant still belonged to RAK. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil
Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to disrobe and to marry in Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province, the murder of his uncle, his wife and his four children in Sangkae District Battambang Province in 1978. Whilst it is clearly
recognised that the death of family member is a traumatising event for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and death because of lack of medical treatment of her father and siblings in 1977 in Bakan District, Pursat Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events,
they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death by starvation of Applicant's younger brother; murder of her sister in-law and her nieces/nephews in 1975 at Kampong Trabaek District, Prey Veng Province; murder of Applicant's husband, a
RAK soldier, in 1977 at Svay Teab District, Svay Rieng Province; forced marriage of her cousin in 1976 in Svay Chrum District, Svay Rieng Province; enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Kampong Trabaek District,
Prey Veng Province throughout the DK Regime (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 003). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which
would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various places in Svay Rieng and Battambang Provinces throughout the DK Regime; forced transfer of Applicant from Svay Rieng to Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province in
1977; disappearance of Applicant's family members in unknown circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they
fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various places in Svay Rieng and Prey Veng Provinces from 1975 until 1978 and in Battambang Province from 1978 onwards; forced transfer of Applicant and his family from Svay
Rieng to Battambang Province in 1978; the Applicant lists deaths of people at unspecified dates and circumstances in Battambang Province; disappearance of Applicant's son in unknown circumstances from Prey Veng Province. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's brother-in-law in Prey Veng Province; murder of Applicant's father and disappearance of Applicant's sister and brother in 1978; forced transfer from Prey Veng Province to
Battambang Province and Pursat Province in 1978 and enslavement and inhumane living condition of Applicant and her family throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described enslavement at various locations; imprisonment, ill-treatment, inadequate medical care; disappearance of his father and his brother; death by starvation and inadequate medical care of his mother and his son in Svay
Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family in Chamkar Leu District, Kampong Cham Province and in Kampong Thom Province, throughout the DK Regime; forced marriage of Applicant in 1977
(unspecified location). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant at 1st January Dam, Baray District, Kampong Thom Province from late 1976 until mid-1977 and various locations in Baray District; disappearance of Applicant's father in
1977 at Wat Baray Chan Dek SC in Baray District; death by illness of Applicant's brother in a hospital in Kampong Thma Commune, Suntuk District, Kampong Thom Province in 1977; murder of Applicant's mother and five other sibling in
1977 at Chamkar Andaung Commune, Chamkar Leu District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil
Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. (The descriptions were clarified during the Applicant's hearing in Case 002).

The Applicant described the murder of her husband on accusation of being a Lon Nol soldier; murder of her nephews, her niece in-law with child and her relatives; disappearance of her sons; forced marriage of her daughter; enslavement and
inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Kampong Chhnang Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations, including the 1st January Dam in Kampong Thom Province, from 1975 (the descriptions were clarified during the Applicant's hearing in Case 002). While this is
traumatising, the facts do not relato to amy matter which would enable the Applicant as a Civil Party. In particular, they fall outside of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour, as well as her sister in Kampong Thom Province. Whilst this was probably traumatising, this does not permit her as a Civil Party, as it falls outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at unspecified locations from 1977; murder of Applicant's brother in Bakan District, Pursat Province (unspecified time); disappearance of Applicant's brother and other family members in
unknown circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations in Svay Rieng Province in 1976; disappearance of her husband and her father in 1977 in Svay Rieng Province; forced transfer of Applicant and her family to Moung
Ruessei District in 1978; death of Applicant's siblings in Moung Ruessei District, Pursat Province in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced transfer of Applicant from Svay Rieng to Pursat Province in 1978; enslavement in Prey Veng and Pursat Provinces, throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's siblings in Pursat
Province in 1978; disappearance of Applicant's aunts and uncles in unspecified circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations in Prey Veng Province until 1978 and in Bakan District, Pursat Province from then onwards; forced transfer of Applicant and his family to Bakan District in 1978.
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations in Kampong Svay District, Kampong Thom Province from 1975 until 1979; disappearance of Applicant's son, who was a RAK soldier in a mobile unit in Kampong
Svay District, Kampong Thom Province in 1978. While the Applicant mentioned in her Application that her brother had disappeared, she clarified in the interview that only her son had disappeared. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to do hard labour to marry; the murder his siblings, aunts, uncles, niece/nephew in Tboung Khmum District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts
provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the disappearance of her husband, children, and siblings in Ta Mat Security Center in 1977 and enslavement in Kampot Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to do hard labour and the disappearance of 5 of her siblings in 1977 in Angkor Chey District, Kampot porivnce. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate
to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to do hard labour and the disappearance of her siblings and niece/nephew in Angkor Chey District, Kampot Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to hard labour in various work sites in Thala Barivat District, Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would
permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement (forced Labour) of Applicant in Ou Rang Ov District, Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's mother in 1977 in Ou Rang Ov District; disappearance of
Applicant's uncles in 1978 in Ou Rang Ov District. While these facts are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the murder of his brother and brother-in-law in 1975; and the death by starvation of his parents and parents-in-law in 1976, in Bakan District, Pursat Province. Whilst it is
recognised that the knowledge of ill-treatment and loss of family member are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit his admission to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the disappearance of her husband, brother-in-law and her children and the death by starvation of her child in Battambang Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment, ill-treatment, and enslavement ot Applicant, a tormer RAK soldier and other inhumane acts at Kakaoh Commune, Moung Ruesse1 District, Battambang Province trom 1976-1977,
Chrang Chamreh Commune, Khan Ruessei Kaev District, Phnom Penh from 1977-1978, and in Kampong Speu Province from 1978-1979; murder of Applicant's father (former Lon Nol soldier) at Thma Koul (unable to locate) in 1975;
forced marriage of Applicant's younger sister at unspecified location in 1977; murder of Applicant's older brother and older sister at Khnar Toteung Commune, Bakan District, Pursat Province in late 1978; death of Applicant's mother,
grandparents, two other siblings, and nieces/nephews in unspecified circumstances, location and time during the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which
would nermit the Annlicant to be inined as a Civil Partv. as thev fall ontside of the scone of the Case

The Applicant described being imprisoned, ill-treated, forced into labour and inhumane living conditions in Phum Veal, Bakan District, Pursat Province, from August 1976 until 1979; the murder of his parents, siblings, brother-in-law and
his nieces/nephews at Tuol Seh Nhauv in 1976; the disappearance of his two uncles's families (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit his admission to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour an to marry, the death of his sister and persecution of Khmer Krom in Battambang Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit his admission to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the murder of her father, and brothers in 1977 at Stung Treng Province; being forced to marry in 1978 in Stung Treng
Province. Whilst it is clearly recognized that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined in as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of his brother after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province; she described being forced to marry
in 1977 at Sesan District, Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit his admission to be joined as a
Civil Party.

The Applicant has described the enslavement of her mother in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; and the disappearance of her father after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in 1977. Whilst it is clearly
recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forced to get married and the disappearances of her father and uncle in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the death of family member is a traumatising event for her, the facts provided by
the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province and the disappearance of her father after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are
traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour throughout the DK Regime; and the disappearance of his father in 1978 after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province. Whilst it is clearly recognized that these are
traumatising events for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit his admission to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour at Thala Barivat District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; and the murder of her uncle and sister-in-law in Takeo Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that
these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Stung Treng Province and the disappearance of her sister after she was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province. In the Supplementary Information, the Applicant mentioned
that she was not forced into marriage during the DK Regime. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the loss of her sister is traumatising for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined
as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; and the disappearance of her father and brothers after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in
1977 (in the Supplementary Information, the Applicant acknowledged that she was ignorant of the reason of their disappearance). Whilst it is clearly recognised that the loss of her family members and ill-treatment are traumatising events for
her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and the disappearance of her father in Stung Treng Province in 1977, grandfather, uncle and brother in Ratanakiri Province in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and to marry, and the disappearance of her brothers, father in-law, and her husband in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and the disappearance of her father in 1976 in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter
which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and the disappearance of her father and uncles in Stung Treng Province, in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any
matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her husband, two children and brother after was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in 1975; and
being forced to marry in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for the Applicant, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be
joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her father, brothers, grandfather, uncles/aunts after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province
in 1976-1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for the Applicant, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.
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The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; and the disappearance of her father after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in 1977. Whilst it is recognised
that the knowledge of ill-treatment and loss of her father are traumatising events for the Applicant, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Thala Barivat District, Stung Treng Province; and disappearance of his brother, father, and uncle after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province. Whilst it is clearly
recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit his admission to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; and the disappearance of her mother, brother, sister-in-law, and niece after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri
Province in 1977-1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Thala Barivat District, Stung Treng Province; and the disappearance of his brother after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that
these are traumatising events for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Stung Treng Province; and the disappearance of his father after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising
events for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Stung Treng Province; and the disappearance of his father after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in 1978. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are
traumatising events for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; and the disappearance of her father and brother after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in
1977-1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for the Applicant, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; and the disappearance of her husband and son after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in
late 1976. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for a wife, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; and the disappearance of her siblings after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in late 1976.
‘Whilst it is recognised that the loss of her siblings is traumatising for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

Enslavement of Applicant in 1977 and 1978 in Stung Treng Province; her siblings were sent to Division 801 security centre in 1977 in unknown circumstances. Whilst this is traumatising, the facts described do not relate to any matter which
would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described the disappearance of her grandfather, father, uncles and aunts, after they were sent from Stung Treng Province to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in 1977-1978. Whilst this is traumatising, the facts described
fall outside of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; and the disappearance of her husband after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province in late 1976.
‘Whilst it is recognised that the loss of her husband is a traumatising event for a wife, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family in Stung Treng Province from 1976; imprisonment of Applicant's great uncle in Division 801 security centre in Ratanakiri Province in unknown circumstances.

‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and the disappearance of her son in Division 801 security centre. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do
not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and the disappearance of her husband and uncle in 1975, her brother in 1976 and her father in 1977 in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour, the forced marriage of her sister and disappearance of her in-laws in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the
Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province, throughout the DK Regime and the imprisonment and murder of her husband and cousins in Division 801 security centre in Ratanakiri
Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts described by the Applicant to not permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; and the disappearance of her siblings in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that enslavement and the loss of siblings are traumatising events, the facts provided by the
Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and to marry; and disappearance of her father, husband, uncle and brother in 1976 in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; and the disappearance of her husband, her father, siblings and in-laws in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do
not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the disappearance of her husband in 1976 in Stung Treng Province, and the disappearance of her sister-in-law in Stung Treng District, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the Applicant specifies that her father and two older brothers were sent to Division 801 security centre in Ratanakiri
Province in 1977, but does not explain in which circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of
the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the Applicant specifies that her father and uncles were sent to Division 801 security centre in Ratanakiri Province and
disappeared in 1977, but does not explain in which circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside
of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the Applicant specifies that her siblings and sibling-in-law were sent to Division 801 security centre in Ratanakiri
Province in 1975, 1976 and 1978, but does not explain in which circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they
fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the Applicant specifies that his father was sent to Division 801 security centre in Ratanakiri Province in 1976, but does
not explain in which circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's brother-in-law in 1977; murder of Applicant's sister in 1977; forced marriage of Applicant in 1978, all in Stung
Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced labour; the disappearance of his father and two sisters in 1977 in Thala Barivat District, Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour in Stung Treng Province, throughout the the DK Regime; the imprisonment of her uncle in Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province, in 1977. The Applicant does not provide enough
information to establish that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour and inhumane living conditions at Trapeang Thma Dam in Phnom Srok District, Banteay Meanchey Province, in 1977-1979; the murder of his brothers in 1977-1978 (these facts were
clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts in Battambang Province, throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's sibling and father in unspecified circumstances and at an unspecified time;
death of Applicant's mother and sister due to starvation and inadequate medical care in 1978 in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the
Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's father and daughter due to illness and starvation in 1976 in Pursat Province; imprisonment, ill-treatment and subsequent death of Applicant's mother at an unspecified time or
location; death of her brother in unspecified circumstances and locations, on an unspecified location; death of Applicant's siblings and their families in Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province and death of her uncles and their families
in Pursat Province, at an unspecified date and in unspecified circumstances. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment and murder of Applicant's cousin in 1976; enslavement of Applicant in 1976 and other inhumane acts in 1977 during her imprisonment; death of her child due to starvation; all in
Sangkae District, Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's aunt and cousins in 1977; murder of Applicant's sister-in-law's husband and child in Sangkae District, Battambang Province (unclear date); enslavement of Applicant's
sister-in-law and other inhumane acts (unclear location and date). Whilst this is traumatizing, the Applicant does not establish that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts in Battambang Province, throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's brother due to inadequate medical care and starvation in 1978 in
Battambang Province; murder of Applicant's father in 1977 or 1978 (unclear location: it cannot be deduced from the narrative that Kampong Som was the location of the murder). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the
Applicant does not establish that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a result of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, former Lon Nol soldier, and his family in Kandal Province in 1975 and in Thipakdei Commune, Koas Krala District, Battambang Province; muder of Applicant's uncle;
Applicant witnessed persecution against former Lon Nol soldiers; death of his mother, his sister and his nephew due to starvation and illness, in Reang Kesi Commune, Sangkae District, Battamabang Province between 1976 & 1977;
imprisonment of Applicant in 1977 in Battambang Province. The Applicant fled upon arrival of the Southwest cadre in the Northwest Zone. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which
would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her children; death of Applicant's son from exhaustion and illness in 1978; disappearance of Applicant's daughter (unknown date), from end of 1975 until January 1979, in
Preah Net Preah District, Banteay Meanchey Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the
scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant from 1975 until 1979 in Battambang Province; murder of Applicant's brother in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's husband and attempted murder of Applicant, in mid-1975; enslavement, from 1975 until 1979; attempt to forcibly marry the Applicant, on an unspecified date, in Kampong
Chhnang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, and other inhumane acts from 1975 until 1979 in Battambang Province; death of Applicant's mother due to inadequate medical treatment in 1977 in Battambang Province;
enslavement of Applicant's brother, in Seung Village; attempted murder of Applicant's brother, in January 1979. The Applicant's brother died soon after the end of the DK Regime due to illness and starvation; murder of two brothers (former
Lon Nol soldiers), one in 1976, in Battambang Province, and the other in 1975, in Kampot Province; enslavement of Applicant's sister at Srey Sisophon District, Banteay Meanchey Province. She died soon after the end of the DK Regime
due to illness and starvation. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in1975, and of Applicant and his brother from 1977 until 1979, as well as ill-treatment from 1977 until 1979, in Battambang Province; disappearance of his father, in early
1976, from Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts in 1975-1979, in Takeo Province; death of Applicant's father in 1975 and of his mother due to starvation in 1978 in Takeo Province; deaths of Applicant's sister
and her family in 1975, in Kampong Speu Province; death of his brother in 1976 in an unspecified location. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in 1975 until 1979, in Svay Rieng and Pursat Provinces; forced transfer of Applicant and her family from Svay Rieng to Pursat Province in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that
all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's father; enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts; ill-treatment of Applicant's brother, near Phnom Penh, from 1975 until 1979. Whilst it is recognised that all these
events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her children in Preah Net Preah District, Banteay Meanchey Province, throughout the DK Regime; ill-treatment of husband, in 1977 in Phnom Srok District, Banteay
Meanchey Province; death of her infant, at the end of 1978, in Banteay Meanchey Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement from 1975 until 1978, near Phnom Sampov, Battambang Province; death of numerous family members, including some from illness and starvation. Whilst it is recognised that all these
events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her mother and siblings and other inhumane acts, in Battambang Province, including in Kamping Puoy, throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's father (former
Lon Nol soldier) in Battambang Province; imprisonment of Applicant's sister; death of Applicant's sister's husband, unspecified date, in Pursat Province; death of Applicant's grandfather due to starvation, unspecified date, in Battambang
Province; disappearance of Applicant's uncle in 1976 or 1978, from Phnom Krapeu, Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, throughout the DK Regime, including in Battambang Province in 1978; death of Applicant's nephew in 1978; disappearance of her cousin at the end of 1978, from
Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts in Kampong Chhnang Province, from 1976 until 1979 and enslavement of Applicant's mother and grandfather; deaths of Applicant's mother, sister
and grandfather due to starvation in 1975-1976; disappearance of Applicant's father, a former Lon Nol soldier, in 1975. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the
Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, a former Lon Nol soldier, and other inhumane acts, in Battambang Province, from 1976 or 1977 until 1978; death of Applicant's wife and children in Battambang Province,
unspecified date. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, her mother and sisters, and other inhumane acts in Kampong Damrey Commune, Chhlaung District, Kratie Province, from 1975 until 1976, and in Phnom Kravanh District,
Pursat Province from 1976 until 1978; death of Applicant's mother (1976), infant (Phnom Kravanh District), mother-in-law (1978 in Pursat Province) and sisters (shortly after the DK Regime) due to starvation. Whilst it is recognised that all
these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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DI11/78/3

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant at in Svay Rieng and Pursat Provinces from 1975 until 1979; forcible transfer of Applicant from Svay Chrum District, Svay Rieng Province to Bakan District, Pursat Province
in September 1978; death of Applicant's relatives, in Svay Chrum District, and Pursat Province; ill-treatment of Applicant in 1977, in Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts of Applicant throughout the DK Regime in Phnom Srok District, Banteay Meanchey Province; death of Applicant's parents due to starvation in 1977 in Phnom
Srok District; death of his younger brother in 1976 (unspecified location); death of another brother (a former engineer and Lon Nol soldier) in S-21 security centre in 1976; murder of Applicant's siblings and their families in Kampong
Chhnang Province (unspecified date or circumstances); and deaths of ten nieces/nephews in unspecified locations, dates and circumstances. In the VIF, the Applicant states that her mother passed away during the Vietnamese take-over in
1979 (location not specified); the Supplementary Information contains an internal contradiction: she first states that her parents died of illness and later that they were killed. The locations and dates in the Application are unclear. While all of
the events described are traumatising, the Applicant does not establish that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered harm as a result of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province and other locations, throughout the DK Regime; attempted murder of her brother in late 1978 (unspecified location); death of Applicant's
parents and brother due to starvation and lack of medical care (unspecified location) in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil
Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Phnom Sork District, Banteay Meanchey Province in 1976, including at Trapeang Thma Dam); persecution of Khmer Krom; deaths of Applicant's husband, children, brother and
nephew. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's children in Kandal Province due to illness; enslavement and other inhumane acts throughout the DK Regime in Kandal and Takeo Provinces; forced marriage of Applicant (unclear
date or location); deaths of other relatives (unclear circumstances, dates or locations). These facts were clarified in her hearing in Case 002/1. Whilst this is traumatizing, the Applicant does not establish that it is more likely than not to be
true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampot Province in 1975 and of her sister in Battambang Province in 1976; death of Applicant's niece in 1976 in Battambang Province due to starvation; murder of
Applicant's uncle, a former Lon Nol soldier in Battambang Province (unspecified time); murder of Applicant's aunts and their families at an unclear location in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate
to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's friends of Vietnamese ethnicity between 1977 and 1978 from Sisophon District, Banteay Meanchey Province; enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts
throughout the DK Regime in Serey Sophon District, Banteay Meanchey Province; disappearance of Applicant's sister-in-law in unspecified circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's siblings in 1976 and 1977 due to illness and starvation in Battambang Province; enslavement of Applicant and his mother and other inhumane acts in 1976 until 1979 in
Battambang Province; murder of Applicant's father in 1977 or 1978 in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil
Party, as they fall outside of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Baray District, Kampong Thom Province (unspecified timeframe); murder of Applicant's aunt's relatives (unspecified time and location) and disappearance of other family
members (unspecified time and location). Whilst this is traumatizing, the Applicant does not establish that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's child due to inadequate medical care in Kandal Province (unspecified date); enslavement of Applicant's wife and children and other inhumane acts in Kandal Province; death of
Applicant's daughter due to ill-treatment in November 1976 in Kandal Province; death of Applicant's sister and her family in Kampong Cham Province (unknown circumstances and unspecified date) and his brother (unspecified date); death
of Applicant's parents in Takeo Province (unspecified date). Whilst this is traumatizing, the Applicant does not establish that it is more likely than not to be true that he suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's husband in Pursat Province; ill-treatment and attempted murder of Applicant in 1977 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; enslavement of Applicant in 1977-1978 in Pursat
Province and later in Siem Reap Province; death of Applicant's four children (unspecified date and location). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family and other inhumane acts in Kampong Chhnang Province in 1975 and in 1978 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; death of Applicant's father and brother due to
illness in 1976 in Bakan District; ill-treatment of Applicant's brother. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement as a child, from 1975 until 1979; murder of Applicant's father and uncle, ill-treatment of her mother, in 1978, in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are
traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: imprisonment, enslavement and subsequent disappearance of Applicant's father, in Kum Leach Village, in 1975; enslavement of Applicant and her mother; death of Applicant's mother due to
inadequate medical care in mid-1976; imprisonment, ill-treatment and rape of Applicant in 1977, in Kum Leach Village, in Pursat or Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and starvation, in Phum Snong, Battambang Province (no time frame). While the events described are traumatising, the Applicant does not establish that it is more likely than not to be true
that she suffered harm as a result of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement for Applicant's father, in 1975, and of Applicant in 1977; murder of Applicant's cousin, in 1978; death of Applicant's grandfather due to illness, starvation and lack of adequate medical
care; attempted murder of Applicant's father, in 1978, in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as
they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her children, from 1975 until 1979, in Battambang Province; death of 17 family members during the DK Regime (unspecified circumstances). Whilst it is recognised that
all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's father and uncles; enslavement for Applicant and relatives; death of relatives due to starvation and illness; disappearance of Applicant's infant, no specific date, no clear location.
‘Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts from 1975 until 1978; death of her father due to illness and starvation (1976), all in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events
are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her relatives and other inhumane acts from 1977 or 1978, in Battambang Province; death of her mother's siblings during the DK Regime; murder of Applicant’s cousins.
‘Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts from 1975 until 1979 in Moung, in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts, from 1975 until 1979, in Battambang Province; murder of her uncle in 1976 and of his cousin; death of Applicant's infant due to malnutrition in
1977. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, her father and her brother, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's husband in 1976; death of Applicant's infant due to malnutrition in 1977; forced marriage in
1977, all in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family and other inhumane acts, throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's mother due to starvation and inadequate medical care in 1977, all in Battambang
Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts, from the end of 1975 or 1976 until 1979; death of Applicant's brother due to starvation (unspecified date, after end of 1975); death of Applicant's
sister-in-law, at the end of 1975 or 1976, all in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts from 1975 until 1979 in Tuol Mtes, Battambang Province; attempted murder in 1979, in Battambang Province; murder of Applicant's husband,
unspecified date. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts, from 1976 in an unclear location; death of Applicant's father and brother, unspecified date or location; death of Applicant's child in a fire, in 1975 or
1976; ill-treatment of Applicant's husband, 1975 or 1976, for a year, unspecified location. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil
Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her husband, from 1975 until 1979, in Moung Village, Battambang Province; starvation of Applicant's child. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising,
they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts from 1976 until 1978; murder of her sister and brother-in-law, and of her child in 1976, in Serei Sophoan District, Banteay Meanchey Province; death
of Applicant's father in 1978, in Banteay Meanchey Province; death of her brother and cousins who were arrested (unspecified date and location); disappearance of her mother, in 1979, unspecified location. However, the information
enclosed (medical assessment) is contradictory as it states that the Applicant's family was rounded up and burnt alive, and her sister raped to death. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter
which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement for Applicant and other inhumane acts from 1975 until 1979 in Battambang Province; disappearance of Applicant's husband in 1976, and of her father and cousin in 1977 from Phnom
Thipakdei, Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant from 1975 or early 1976 until 1978 in various locations in Battambang Province (including Thma Koul and Bavel Districts); forced marriage in mid-1978, in Bavel District.
‘Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family members and other inhumane acts, in Tuol Sambuor District, Kampong Cham Province; disappearance of Applicant's uncle, a former Lon Nol soldier in 1976,
in Koh Saung; disappearance of Applicant's father in 1977, from Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts from 1975 until 1979; murder of Applicant's father, all in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to
any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement, and other inhumane acts from 1976 until 1978 in Pursat Province; murder of Applicant's sisters-in-law, relatives of former Lon Nol soldiers, from 1975 until 1977, in Pursat Province;
deaths or disappearances of her cousins (former Lon Nol soldiers). Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family from 1975 until 1979; still-born child due to starvation and inadequate medical care of Applicant; attempted murder of Applicant, near Phnom Penh. Whilst it
is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: Death of Applicant's sister due to starvation in 1975; enslavement of Applicant from 1975 until 1979; ill-treatment of her father; death of Applicant's aunts; ill-treatment, all in Battambang Province.
‘Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant until at least beginning of 1977 and other inhumane acts in Battambang Province; death of Applicant's uncle due to starvation, death of Applicant's sister in late 1978, in
Battambang Province; disappearance of Applicant's uncle (unspecified date and location). Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil
Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: attempted murder of Applicant, murder of applicant's brother-in-law; disappearance of Applicant's nephew in 1975, in Battambang Province; enslavement of Applicant, in 1976 until 1978, in
Battambang Province, including in Kamping Puoy, in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of
the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his relatives and other inhumane acts, from 1975 until mid-1978; death of Applicant's grandfather due to starvation in late 1977, all in Battambang Province; ill-treatment,
June or July 1978; murder of Applicant's wife, after being subjected to inhumane treatment in 1978, in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit
the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's daughter due to illness and starvation, 1975; forced transfer of Applicant and his family from Svay Rieng to Pursat Province in 1978; enslavement of Applicant, his wife and two
sons, from 1976 until 1978; disappearance of Applicant's cousin in 1978, from Svay Rumpea Commune, Svay Teap District, Svay Rieng Province; death of Applicant's infant due to starvation and lack of adequate medical care in 1978;
imprisonment of Applicant's cousin (unspecified date); enslavement of Applicant's son at a mobile unit, in Pursat Province; death of Applicant's wife and son; disappearance of his brother, sister and brother-in-law in 1979, in Sdock Klar.
‘Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, his first wife and second wife and his children; death of Applicant's first and second wife and step-daughter and step-daughter's husband due to starvation and inadequate
medical care, in 1976; disappearance of his cousin in 1977, from Thmey Village, Kampong Prieng Commune, Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would
permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement, starvation, ill-treatment of Applicant in Moung District, Battambang Province throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's mother due to illness in 1977; murder of her uncle in 1977;
disappearance of aunt (unknown date), in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside
of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family and her family, from 1975 until 1978, in Thma Kol and Veal Trea Villages, Battambang Province; death of Applicant's brother in 1975 (unspecified
circumstances); death of Applicant's sisters due to starvation, in 1976; death of his father due to illness and starvation, in 1978, in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's brother, his wife and children due to illness and starvation, in Kampong Cham Province; disappearance of Applicant's mother, unknown date, in Batheay Village, Kampong Cham
Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's father in 1975; enslavement of Applicant, his mother and sisters and other inhumane acts, including ill-treatment of Applicant, throughout the DK Regime, in Battambang
Province; death of Applicant's brother due to inadequate medical care, in 1976, in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his brother, and other inhumane acts, from 1976 until 1979; forced marriage in early 1978, Svay Phleung Commune, Kampong Thom Province; disappearance of
Applicant's brother in mid-1975 or 1976, from Kampong Cham Province; disappearance of Applicant's father, a former Lon Nol soldier from Kampong Cham Province (unspecified date); disappearance of Applicant's uncle between mid-
1975 and mid-1976, from Peam Chikang Commune, Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as
they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family, and other inhumane acts throughout the DK Regime; forced marriage of Applicant's sister, in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province; disappearance of Applicant's
brothers, unspecified location and date; death of a brother-in-law in Kampot Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil
Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, a former Lon Nol soldier, and other inhumane acts, throughout the DK Regime; impri and ill-t in July or August 1976; forced marriage, all in Battambang
Province; death of Applicant's parents in unknown circumstances. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, and other inhumane acts, in Svay Sophoan District, Banteay Meanchey Province, throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's mother due to illness or murder in Pursat
Province; death of Applicant's father (unspecified circumstances); death of her sister due to starvation in Pursat Province, unspecified dates. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which
would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts; murder of Applicant's husband, at the end of 1978; death of Applicant's mother due to starvation, unknown date, at an unclear location. Whilst it is
recognised that all these events are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant, and other inhumane acts from 1975 until 1978; disappearance of Applicant's father, unspecified date, in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that all these events are
traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant's family in Serei Sophoan District, Banteay Meanchey Province; murder of Applicant's father in Serei Sophoan District in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's father due to starvation in 1975 and flight of her family to Vietnam thereafter. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would
permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced labour at Kang Hat Dam and other locations in Sangkae District, Battambang Province, throughout the DK Regime; the imprisonment of his brother in Wat Po Laingka in Sangkae District in late-
1977; the disappearance of his uncle in 1976 or 1977 in Sangkae District, upon accusation of being a Vietnamese soldier (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: forced labour from 1975 until 1979 in Sangkae District, Battambang Province; death due to starvation and murder of his in-laws in Sangkae District in 1978; the Applicant witnessed persecution of
Khmer Krom from 1976 onwards in Sangkae District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to
any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kampong Prieng Commune, Sangkae District, Battambang Province; death of Applicant's daughter due to starvation in 1977 in Kampong Prieng Commune; disappearance
of Applicant's husband, daughter and sister in Kach Roteh and Sala Trav Villages, Kampong Prieng Commune in 1978 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 002 and Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that
these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced labour at various locations in Battambang Province throughout the DK Regime; the imprisonment and murder of his father in Battambang Province in July 1977. While the Supplementary
Information provided by the Applicant mention that his marriage was forced, the original Application is silent on whether it was forced or not and the Case 004 interview of the Applicant revealed that the wedding was consensual. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: the murder of his grandfather and uncle in 1976 at Reang Kesei Commune, Sangkae District, Battambang Province and his brother-in-law in 1978 in Sangkae District; being forced into hard labour at
various locations in Sangkae District throughout the DK Regime; the forced marriage of his older sister in 1977 at Sangkae District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that
these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: being forcibly transferred from Takeo Province to Sangkae District, Battambang privince; forced into hard labour at Kang Hat Dam (1977) and other locations; the murder of his uncle and his brother's
family in 1977 at Reang Kesey Commune, Sangkae District; the forced marriage of his cousin in 1978 in Reang Kesey Commune; the forced marriage and murder of his brother in 1978 at Reang Kesey Commune; the persecution of Khmer
Krom (these facts were clarified during the interviews of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be
joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and inhumane living condition of Applicant from 1975 until 1978 in Kandal Province; murder of Applicant's uncle; persecution of Khmer Krom (the descriptions were clarified during the
Applicant's hearing in Case 002).

The Applicant described the following: death due to illness and inadequate medical care of Applicant's two sons in 1975 and 1976, in Sangkae District; murder of Applicant's older brother in 1977 and murder of her three older brothers'
families in 1978; death due to illness and inadequate medical care of her two siblings in 1978 at Sangkae District; enslavement of Applicant. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which
would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant; death of Applicant's uncle due to illness in 1975 in Sankgae District, Battambang Province; and of her daughter in 1977 in the same location; murder of Applicant's daughter-
in-law and her grandchild in 1976 near Sala Trav Village, Kampong Prieng Commune, Sangkae District; murder of her husband and her two sons in 1978 (unspecified locations and times). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: being forced into hard labour and inhumane living conditions in Sangkae District, Battambang Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her father in 1977 in Sangkae District; the
persecution of Khmer Krom from mid-1977 onwards (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to
any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's younger brother in 1977 in Bavel District, Battambang Province; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living condition of Applicant and his family at Bavel District and
other locations in Battambang Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall
outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's parents and her husband due to starvation; death of Applicant's younger brother due to inadequate medical care in 1975; enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant
in Kandal Province throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the
Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant at Sangkae District, Battambang Province; murder of his parent and siblings at Sangkae District, in 1977; persecution of Khmer Krom. Whilst
it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Phnom Penh and Preah Vihear Provinces; murder and disappearance of his three cousins' families (unspecified places)
on accusation of being Lon Nol soldiers; the Applicant states that other family members of his were Khmer Krom and disappeared, but he does not know whether this happened in Cambodia, or under which circumstances. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations, inhumane living conditions, imprisonment and ill-treatment of Applicant and his wife in Mongkol Borei District, Banteay Meanchey Province in 1975 and 1976; death
of Applicant's grandfather due tostarvation in 1975 and his younger brother; murder of Applicant's parents and his five siblings, four nieces and nephews and three in-laws in Bakan District, Pursat Province and murder of his parents-in-law in
1978, as they were Khmer Krom; persecution of Khmer Krom in Bakan District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as
they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: the death of her son due to starvation, death of her husband and her father due to illness, imprisonment and murder of her younger brother and disappearance of her two older brothers in Prey Veng
Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: the murder of his father and brothers in Bakan District, Pursat Province; the disappearance of his younger brother; being forced to marry in 1977 in Bakan District; being forced to carry out hard labour
in Bakan District, throughout the DK Regime (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for the Applicant, they do not relate to any matter which
would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's mother and her two siblings due to starvation, illness and overwork in 1976 and another four siblings in 1977 at Bot Kor Ky cooperative, Bakan District, Pursat Province; death of
her uncle's family; enslavement, inadequate medical care and inhumane living condition of Applicant, throughout the DK Regime in Bakan District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter
which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced labour and forced marriage; the murder of her father and husband; death of her mother and her aunt due to starvation in Bakan District, Pursat Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these
are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: forced labour; the murder of his uncle's family in Banteay Meanchey Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate
to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: being forced to carry out hard labour at various locations; the inadequate medical care and inhumane living conditions she went through in Bakan District, Pursat Province, throughout the DK Regime;
the imprisonment of her family member at Trach Kraol Prison, Bakan District in 1978 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided
by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: forced transfer of Applicant and her family to Bakan District, Pursat Province; murder of Applicant's parents in 1978; enslavement; persecution of Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour at various locations in Bakan District, Pursat Province, throughout the DK Regime; the murder of his six family members including his father and siblings in Bakan District; the
persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would
permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the murder of her brothers in Bakan District, Pursat Province (in 1976 and 1977-1978 respectively); the death of her two sisters due to starvation; being forced to carry out hard labour and going through inhumane
living conditions in Bakan District, throughout the DK Regime; the persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour in inhumane conditions with her family, in Khnar Toteung Commune, Bakan District, Pursat Province throughout the DK Regime; the murder of her siblings in Moung District,
Battambang Province in 1976; the murder of her mother and another sibling in Khnar Toteung Commune, in 1976; the murder of her uncles and brothers in Khnar Toteung Commune in 1977; and the persecution of Khmer Krom. Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the imprisonment and ill-treatment of his father in Phum Veal, Bakan District, Pursat Province from 1976 untill 1979; starvation and being forced labour at various locations and inhumane living conditions in Bakan
District, throughout the DK Regime; the persecution of Khmer Krom; and the forced marriage and murder of his older brother in Sompov Meas Disrict, Pursat Province in 1978 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant
in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and inhumane living condition of Applicant; death of her siblings due to starvation and enslavement; persecution of Khmer Krom in Bakan District, Pursat Province, in particular in 1977-
1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant and Applicant's family at Svay Doun Kaev Commune, Bakan District, Pursat Province throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's
children in 1978; death of Applicant's parents-in-law due to starvation in July 1978; murder of Applicant's wife and Applicant's children between 1978 and 1979; persecution of Khmer Krom. The ICIJ notes the inconsistencies between the
VIF and Supplementary Information. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the death of his parents and sibling due to starvation in 1976 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; being forced to carry out hard labour at various locations inhumane living conditions in Bakan District, throughout the
DK Regime; the persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any
matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the persecution of Khmer Krom; being imprisoned in November 1977; being forced to carry out hard labour in Bakan District, Pursat Province, throughout the DK Regime; being forced to marry in 1978 in Bakan
District; the murder of her husband in Bakan District in early 1978 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do
not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being imprisoned at Phum Veal, Bakan District, Pursat Province from 1977 until 1979; ill-treatment; persecution of Khmer Krom; being forced to carry out hard labour in Bakan District, Pursat Province, throughout
the DK Regime (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him
to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour at various locations in Svay Rieng and Pursat Provinces throughout the DK Regime; the persecution of Khmer Krom; the murders of his parents, siblings, uncles and cousins in
Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1978; the forced marriage of his younger brother in Kampong Trabek District, Prey Veng Province in 1977 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: forced labour; the murder of his cousins in Pursat Province, as well as persecution of Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not
relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: being forced into labour throughout the DK Regime and imprisoned and ill-treated in 1976 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; being forced into marriage in 1978 in Snam Preah Village in Bakan
District; the murder of his brother; death of his cousins due to starvation and over work in Bakan District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). While it is recognised that these events may have been
traumatising for the Applicant, they do not relate to to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's father and his two brothers in 1975; murder of his 6 brothers in 1978 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; death of his two nieces/nephews due to starvation in 1978; murder of
Khmer Krom and East Zone Evacuees in Bakan District; enslavement at various locations in Bakan District; forced marriage in August 1977 in Bakan District and inhumane living condition of Applicant. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the murder of her parent-in-law, siblings in-law and her first husband in 1978 at Tuol Seh Nhauv, Bakan District, Pursat Province; being forced into hard labour and inhumane living conditions in Bakan District
throughout the DK Regime; forced marriage in 1978 in Bakan District; the persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004 and by his public testimony in Case 002). Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the death of his wife while delivering a baby in 1975 at Sompov Meas District, Pursat Province; being forced into hard labour at various locations from 1976 onwards in Bakan District, Pursat Province; being forced
into marriage in 1977; inhumane living conditions in Bakan District; the death of his mother and two children due to starvation, overwork or disease at Trapeang Chorng Commune, in Bakan District. Although the VIF mentioned the death of
three of his siblings, the Applicant denied this in his Case 004 interview with OCIJ. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be
joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the murder of his uncle, relatives, grandparents and father in Pursat Province in 1978; the forced marriage of his mother at Khnar Toteung Commune in 1978; being forced into hard labour and inhumane living
conditions at various locations in Bakan District, throughout the DK Regime; the persecution of Khmer Krom at Tuol Seh Nhauv, Bakan District; the death of his siblings (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in
Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being imprisoned, forced into hard labour and inhumane living conditions from 1976 until 1979 at Phum Veal, Bakan District, Pursat Province; the murder of his son; the persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts
were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the murder of his wife, children and mother-in-law in late 1977 at Tuol Seh Nhauv, Bakan District, Pursat Province and of his younger brother; being forced into hard labour and marriage in early 1978 in Bakan
District; the persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter
which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his family in Bakan District, Pursat Province; death of Applicant's three daughters due to starvation and inadequate medical care in Bakan District (unspecified date);
murder of Applicant's wife in 1978 in Bakan District; death of Applicant's relatives and his wife's relatives (unspecified circumstances); persecution against Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described that she was forced into hard labour at various locations and inhumane living conditions throughout the DK Regime; the death of her son due to starvation in Bakan District in 1976; the forced transfer of her uncle's
family and their subsequent death due to starvation; the attempt to forcibly marry her and the forced marriage of her sister at Khnar Toteung, Bakan District in 1978; the persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the
interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the death of his parents due to starvation; enslavement at various work sites and inhumane living conditions in Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of his father and uncle; forced transfer and disappearance of his cousin; being forced to carry out hard labour in Savy Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of his father and inhumane living conditions in Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced transfer of Applicant and his family from Prey Veng Province to Pursat Province in 1978 and subsequent murder of his parents and siblings in Pursat Province. Whilst it is recognised that these
are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being imprisoned with his family; enslavement at various work sites and inhumane living conditions of Applicant and his sister; murder of his brother at Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following on behalf of his father: ill-treatment and persecution of Khmer Krom; enslavement in 1977-1979. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would
permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced transfer of Applicant and his family from Prey Veng Province to Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1978; death of Applicant's father due to exhaustion and disappearance of his seven siblings in
1978 in Pursat Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being deported from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978 and forced to carry out hard labour in Kirivong District from 1978 until 1979; the persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were
clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forcibly transferred from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District in April 1978; being forced to carry out hard labour and inhumane living conditions in Kirivong District from 1978 until 1979; the persecution
of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him
to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: forced labour and other inhumane acts in Kirivong District, Takeo Province throughout the DK Regime; and being imprisoned in Wat Pratheat, Kirivong District until late 1977 (these facts were
clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being deported from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; forced labour, imprisonment, inhumane living conditions in Kirivong District in 1978; the murder of his younger brother and his
uncle in Kirivong District in 1978 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which
would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and and being imprisoned in Wat Pratheat in late 1976 (these facts were clarified during the interviews of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the murder of his uncle, a former Lon Nol soldier, and of his brother in 1976 at Slakou bridge in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province; being forced to carry out hard labour; and the persecution of Khmer Krom in 1977
in Kirivong District, Takeo Province (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter
which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described being forcibly transferred from Kampuchea Krom to Kampaeang Commune, Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; being forced to carry out hard labour at various locations in Kirivong District from 1978 until
1979; the witnessing of the murder of Khmer Krom in 1976 in Kampuchea Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by
the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.
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g § E PROM Sa 2 The Applicant described the disappearance of various family members in Siem Reap Province; his enslavement in Takeo, in the VIF from 1975, in the Supplementary Information, from 1976 after deportation from Vietnam. Beyond these Takeo :(é Sam Sok
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S 2 2 CcHAU Ny - 1977 in Moung Ruessei District; being forced to carry out hard labour in Moung Ruessei District, throughout the DK Regime; the persecution of Khmer Krom (the description was clarified through the interview in Case 004 and the hearing ~ Takeo 2= Sam Sokong
(=3 ic
a =i 5 in Case 002 of the Applicant). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. &
Q %' ©° g The Applicant described being deported from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978 and being forced to become a RAK soldier; the murder of his nieces and nephews in Kirivong District in 1978; the persecution of B
S > 2 TOB Nget e Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to  Takeo ~=  Sam Sokon
= & o g Pp g g P! Yy Pp y P g
a =R (o be joined as a Civil Party. &
o , o
= 7 N = The Applicant described being forced into hard labour, transferred from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; and the disappearance of her brother in Kirivong District in 1978 (these facts were clarified during the i
= > & LACH Sém & PP 8 i P s § i pp 8 s Takeo «=  Sam Sokong
= 2= L) interviews of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. c
(] = =)
ic
o2
] %' - b= The Applicant described the following: tranfer of Applicant and his family from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; enslavement and inhumane living conditions in Kirivong District in 1978-1979; murder of his B
= 2 & PRUM Saroeun D11/43/3 uncle, a former Lon Nol soldier in late 1978 in Kirivong District; persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do Takeo »=  Sam Sokong
= =
a =2 S, not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
- . @ The Applicant described being forced into hard labour at various locations and ill-treatment in Takeo Province, throughout the DK Regime; imprisonment in Kirivong District and in Ang Rorka Security Centre in Tram Kak District in 1978;
§ § § THANN Thim “; D11/44/3 to 3.2 tl?c .fcrccd marriage of his.niccc in Tram .I(?k District.in 1?78 (the dcscript%ons v&fcrc clarified quring the Applic;%nt's hcaring in CilSC 002 and intcrlvi(:\?v %n Case 094). While the Applicant r.ncl:mions in the Applicatiorf that he witncssctd the Takeo LE S St
a 2= 5 killing of 50 persons of Vietnamese ethnicity, he clarified in the Case 004 interview that he neither heard about it nor mentioned it to anyone. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do c
- not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.
' o2
§ § § YON Yan 3 The Applicant described the following: transfer from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; and subsequent enslavement of Applicant; death of Applicant's three children and mother-in-law due to starvation and Takeo :(é Sam Sokon
A 4 = g exhaustion. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. c E
2 % © g The Applicant described the following: inhumane living conditions and enslavement of Applicant at various locations in Kirivong District, Takeo Province, throughout the DK Regime; forced transfer of his aunt and uncle's families from =
E > § SAY Vath 3 Phnom Penh to Takeo Province; murder of his uncle; forced marriage of his two aunts in Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would Takeo 2= Sam Sokong
a = 2 2 permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
5 %' = E_ The Applicant described the following: forced transfer from Phnom Penh to Takeo Province; enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant and his older sister in Kirivong, Tram Kak and Koh Andet Districts, in Takeo Province; =
E > § MAO Tol (: death of Applicant's younger sister due to starvation; forced transfer of Applicant's cousin from Takeo to Battambang Province in 1975; forced marriage of Applicant's cousin in Kirivong District in 1977; murder of Applicant's uncle. Whilst it Takeo »=  Sam Sokong
a =2 E is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
2
% % ) 3 The Applicant described the following: enslavement, imprisonment, and other inhumane acts in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province in 1976; imprisonment and and ill-treatment in Tram Kak District in 1976; persecution of Khmer Krom in b=
E > § EAM Yen ; D11/58/3; /44/3.1 1976 (these facts were also touched upon during the hearing in Case 002 by the Applicant). While these facts are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant as a Civil Party. In particular, they fall out of =~ Takeo 2= Sam Sokong
a = 2 = the material scope of the Case. &
a %' o =i The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's husband in 1976 in Kirivong District, Takeo Province; enslavement of Applicant from then on in Takeo Province; imprisonment of Applicant's brother-in-law in late 1977 in =
E > § YANN Nhar = Kraing Ta Chan security centre, Takeo Province; murder of relatives of the Applicant's father in-law at unspecified dates in Battambang Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter Takeo »=  Sam Sokong
a =2 5 which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
§ § E SAM On pe The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Takeo Province; murder of Applicant's parents in 1978 in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province; forced marriage of Applicant's aunt in 1978 in Tram Kak District. Whilst it is Takeo LE Sam Sokon
a L8 ‘2 recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. c g
_ 0 The Applicant described being forced into hard labour and other inhumane acts in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province from 1976 until 1979; attempted forced marriage in early 1979 in Tram Kak District; the murder of his cousins, one of
= e I which was transferred in 1975 from Svay Rieng to Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province where he was eventually killed upon accusation of being Vietnamese; he also witnessed the persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were i
= > & RY Pov = DI1/61/3;3.1 X . . . . N N . o . .. X X N L Takeo »=  Sam Sokong
a - = - clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004 and his hearing in Case 002). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be &
- joined as a Civil Party.
© . = The Applicant described being forcibly transferred with his family from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; forced into hard labour; starved and provided with inadequate medical care in Kirivong District from
* 7= h g 1978 until 1979; the death of his mother and grandfather due to overwork, starvation and illness in 1978 in Kirivong District; the murder of his uncle, on the accusation that he was Vietnamese, in Angkor Chey District, Kampot Province in i
= > @ KONG Samnang -2 DI11/86/3 A . B e . q q 3 5 P . .. Takeo 2= Sam Sokong
a 2= late 1978; and the murder of another uncles' family in 1977 at Bokor Mountain, Kampot Province (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the c
- iz facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.
, @ -
°\[\° § § KEO Kan ic The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the identifying information of the Takeo K Sam Sokon
a Z = E Applicant state that he was born in 1982, after the DK Regime. This cannot be reconciled with the accounts provided in the VIF and accompanying documents. This does not permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. c E
£ % o |§ The Applicant described the following: deportation of Applicant and her family from Kampuchea Krom to Treang District, Takeo Province in 1976; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions in Takeo Province; =
E > g ORN Lim b murder of Applicant's husband and death of her three children due to starvation; disappearance of Applicant's two brothers-in-law in 1975; forced marriage of Applicant's niece and murder of her niece's family in 1978 in Takeo Province. Takeo 2= Sam Sokong
a = 2 & ‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
5 %' 0 % The Applicant described the following: enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Tram Kak District; murder of her husband, her child and her sibling; forced transfer from Vietnam to Tram Kak District, Takeo Province in B
E > § TAK Sann < DI 1/58/3 early 1977; enslavement of Applicant from 1977 until 1979 in Tram Kak District; disappearance of Applicant's husband and older brother in Tram Kak District in 1978 (the descriptions were clarified during the Applicant's hearing in Case Takeo »=  Sam Sokong
a =2 c 002). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
= % =~ '£'1 The Applicant described the following: forcible transfer from Kampuchea Krom to Cambodia; the disappearance of her parents, who were Lon Nol soldiers in 1977; the disappearance of her grandmother and her four siblings. There were b=
E > g YEM Khonny @ DI11/44/3.1;/91/3 inconsistencies in the information provided and her testimony in Case 002. Therefore, whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, Takeo 2= Sam Sokong
a =R = as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
X %' o The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Stung Treng Province, throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's father and brother-in-law in 1975; murder of Applicant's brother in 1976 in Takeo @
< > E PHOUY Kham Loam Juw a1gjy Province (unspecified circumstances); murder of Applicant's husband (a simple worker) at Division 801 in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicantto ~ Stung Treng 6-;—_’ Sam Sokong, Lor Chunthy Liv Yigiang
a NS be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. s
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The Applicant described the following: the disappearance of his brother in Stung Treng Province, in 1977; being forced to carry out hard labour, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts

YUN Thai provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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Stung Treng Sam Sokong, Lor Chunthy Liv Yigiang
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The Applicant described the disappearance of her father and death of her uncle due to illness in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that the loss of family members is traumatising for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not

LON Ch:
ORIl i relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall out of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: forced labour; the disappearance of his father; forced marriage of his uncle, in Ratankiri Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the death of family member is a traumatising event for him, the
facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: forced labour; the disappearance of her father, uncle, and grandparents in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the death of family member is a traumatising event for her, the facts

PHOEU Kham Fat
OEMEC S provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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Stung Treng Sam Sokong, Lor Chunthy Liv Yiqiang
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The Applicant described the following: forced labour; the disappearance of her father, husband, and brother in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the

VON Chanl
anton Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. In particular, the Application falls out of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: forced labour; the murder of her siblings; the disappearance of her brother; the imprisonment of her father and sister in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province, and Angkor Chey District, Kampot Province.
Whilst it is recognised that the knowledge of ill-treatment and loss of family member are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.
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The Applicant described the imprisonment and murder of her uncle in Division 801 security centre, Ratanakiri Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would

SEK Phall
ata permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts do not fall within the scope of the Case.

Stung Treng Sam Sokong, Lor Chunthy Liv Yigiang
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The Applicant described the disappearance of her husband in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that the loss of a husband is traumatising, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to
be joined as a Civil Party. The facts do not fall within the scope of the Case.
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LA Sot Stung Treng Sam Sokong, Lor Chunthy Liv Yiqiang

D11/402
14-VSS-
00164
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The Applicant described the disappearance of her husband in 1976, the forced marriage of her daughter in 1977 in Stung Treng Province and the disappearance of her brother. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts
provided do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall out of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: forced labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province; the murder her grandfather in Division 801 security centre. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by
the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall out of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour, the disappearance of her father, brother, and husband in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do
not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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e The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour throughout the DK Regime and to marry in Thala Barivat District, Stung Treng Province, in 1976; the imprisonment and murder of his brother in Division 801 security centre in
= Ratanakiri Province, in 1978 and 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts described by the Applicant do not permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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D11/406
14-VSS-
00168
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The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour; the disappearance of his siblings and their family members from Stung Treng Province in 1975; being forced to marry in Stung Treng Province in 1978. Whilst it is clearly
KAO Bun LY C=u o . . . . . Lo .. s Stung Treng
recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party.
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The Applicant described being forced to do hard labour in Stug Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her brother after he was sent to Division 801 in early 1978; being forced to marry in Stung Treng Province in
late 1978. Whilst it is clearly recognized that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.
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The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in various locations in Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her husband in 1978 after he was sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province. Whilst
it is clearly recognised that the death of a loved one is a traumatising event for a wife, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.
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The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her brother from Sesan District, Stung Treng Province in 1977 who was sent to Division
801 Security Centre; being forced to marry to a RAK soldier in 1976; and the disappearance of her husband in 1976 (15 days after their marriage). While these are traumatising events, it cannot be satisfied that it is more likely than not to be  Stung Treng
true that the Applicant suffered harm as a result of a charged crime.

Yigat!

CHOM Savoeun Sam Sokong, Lor Chunthy Liv Yiqiang

D11/424
14-VSS-
00101

0
U

The Applicant has described disappearance of her father, uncle, grandfather after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province; the forced labour of her mother in Stung Treng Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is clearly
recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside the scope of the Case.
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LON Meng Stung Treng Sam Sokong, Lor Chunthy Liv Yigiang

DI11/425
14-VSS-
00103
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SOM Chanth = The Applicant, who was born after the DK Regime, described the disappearance of her grandfather during DK Regime. Whilst this may be traumatising knowledge for the Applicant, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would
antio & permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside the scope of the Case.

Yigat!

Stung Treng Sam Sokong, Lor Chunthy Liv Yiqiang

0
U

D11/426
14-VSS-00104

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the disappearance of her uncles, nephew, husband and sister-in-law in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not
relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside the scope of the Case.
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s The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the disappearance of her father, grandparents, uncle and aunt at Division 301 security centre, in Stung Treng Province in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
= events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside the scope of the Case.
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ic The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's husband and relatives in Office 801 in Ratanakiri Province (unknown circumstances) in 1978; forced marriage of Applicant in 1977 in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is

(r:- recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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DI11/107/3

DI11/75/3;3.1

DI11/76/3

She described her uncles and aunts being arrested to be murdered in 1977 in Ratanakiri and her family being forced to carry out hard labour. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which
would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced labour; forced marriage; the disappearance of her husband, father-in-law and her sibling in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the death of a family member is a
traumatising event for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour in Siem Pang District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of his siblings after they were sent from Stung Treng to Division 801 Security Centre
in Ratanakiri Province. Whilst it is recognised that this may be traumatising, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside the scope of the Case

The Applicant described being forced to do hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her brother and sister-in-law after they were sent from Takeo Province to Kampong Channang
in 1977. Whilst it clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party as they fall outside the scope of the Case

The Applicant described being forced to do hard labour in Thala Barivat District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her father, uncle and cousin after they were sent to Veun Sai District, Ratanakiri
Province in 1977. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for her the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside the scope of
the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to do hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of his parents and siblings after they were sent to Division 801 in Veun Sai District, Ratanakiri
Province in 1975; being forced to marry in Sesan District. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Thala Barivat District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her father and uncle after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri Province.
Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; and the disappearance of her parents and uncle in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that enslavement and the loss of family member are traumatising events, the facts
provided do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the disappearance of her son in Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that the loss of a son is traumatising, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined
as a Civil Party, as they fall outside the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the disappearance of her grandfather in 1978 in Division 801 security centre, Stung Treng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided
by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant has described being forced to do hard labour in Sesan District, Stung Treng Province throughout the DK Regime; the disappearance of her mother, uncle, husband, and siblings after they were sent to Division 801 in Ratanakiri
Province in late 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the following: inhumane treatment of Applicant, near Prey Veng Province; enslavement of Applicant in Mondulkiri in 1977-1978; murder of Applicant's brother in unspecified circumstances, location or date. Whilst
it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following events: enslavement of Applicant at various locations throughout the DK Regime in Koas Krala and Sangkae Districts; murder of his wife's grandfather at Sangkae District, Battambang Province in
1976; murder of his three brothers-in-law in 1977 on the accusation that they were Lon Nol soldiers; the murder of other relatives. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit
the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's son in 1975; murder of Applicant's younger brother on accusation of being Vietnamese at Kach Roteh Village, Kampong Prieng Commune, Sangkae District, Battambang
Province in 1975; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions of Applicant throughout the DK Regime in Kampong Prieng Commune; murder of her son-in-law on accusation of being CIA at Kach Roteh Village in
1976; murder of Applicant's two nieces and nephews in late 1978 in Kampong Prieng Commune. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a
Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour and other inhumane acts at various locations throughout the DK Regime in Sangkae District, Battambang Province; the murder of her husband in 1978 in Kach Roteh, Sangkae District,
of her sister and of her son in 1978 in Sangkae District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate
to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Thipakdei Commune, Koas Krala District and Kampong Prieng Commune, throughout the DK Regime; forced marriage in 1976 in Kampong Prieng Commune, Sangkae
District, Battambang Province; the Applicant was traumatised by the ill-treatment she witnessed in Kach Roteh Village, Kampong Prieng Commune. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter
which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; the murder of his father, father-in-law, and brothers in 1977 in Sangkae District Battambang Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him,
the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Moung Ruessei and Sangkae Districts, Battambang Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's parents and his siblings, Khmer Krom (unclear date), in
Pursat Province; persecution of Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the
Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Sangkae District, Battambang Province; murder of Applicant's husband at Wat Kach Roteh, Sangkae District; murder of Applicant's daughters in Sangkae District. Whilst it is recognised
that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of her older brother in 1976, her husband in 1978 and her uncles and cousin in 1978 in Sangkae District, Battambang Province; the death of her father due to starvation in 1977 (as clarified in her Case 004
interviews); being forced into hard labour at various locations in Sangkae District throughout the DK Regime and into marriage in 1978 in Sangkae District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the
Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party.

The Applicant described the imprisonment, ill-treatment, inhumane living conditions and disappearance of her sister in Phnom Thipakdei, Koas Krala District, Battambang Province in 1978; being forced into hard labour in Phnom Thipakdei
and other sites in Koas Krala District, Battambang Province from 1975 until 1979 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by
the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described being forced into hard labour and inhumane living conditions in Thipakdei Commune, Koas Krala District, Battambang Province throughout the DK Regime (these facts were clarified during the interview of the
Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the
Case.

The Applicant described the murder of her brothers in 1976 and her husband in 1978 in Sangkae District in Battambang Province; the death of her brother due to starvation, illness and inadequate medical care in 1977 in Sangkae District;
being forced into hard labour in Sangkae District throughout the DK Regime (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the
Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour at various locations in Koas Krala District, Battambang Province throughout the DK Regime; the death of her child due to starvation at Thipakdei mountain, Koas Krala District in 1976;
the murder of her brother in 1977 at Kampong Prieng cooperative, Sangkae District, Battambang Province; the murder of her uncle's family on accusation of being Vietnamese, because they were Khmer Krom in 1978 at Svay Daun Keo,
Koas Krala District; the death of her father and brother due to illness in 1978 in Koas Krala District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the
facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into marriage in 1975 in Sangkae District, Battambang Province; the murder of her younger brother in 1977 at Sangkae District; being forced into hard labour at various locations in Sangkae District,
throughout the DK Regime (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would
permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death of Applicant's child due to starvation in 1977; enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions of Applicant in Thipakdei, Koas Krala District, and Kampong Prieng Commune
(where she also was imprisoned), Sangkae District, Battambang Province and in Bakan District, Pursat Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of his older brother in late 1978 (unclear location); forced marriage (1978 in Moung
Ruessei District, Battambang Province), imprisonment and murder of his younger sister and his niece and nephew at Thipakdei security centre, in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any
matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour at various locations and inhumane living conditions in Kach Roteh Village, Sangkae District, Battambang Province throughout the DK Regime; being imprisoned near Kang Hat Dam in
Banan District, Battambang Province; the murder of his uncle, aunt and cousins in 1978 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's older brother, a RAK soldier, at S-21 security centre after he quit the army in 1977; inhumane living conditions and enslavement of Applicant at various locations in Kandal
Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatizing events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's husband in Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province in 1977; death due to exhaustion and starvation of her parents and her siblings in Moung Ruessei District; enslavement
and inhumane living conditions of Applicant; murder of her older brother (a teacher) at Kampong Chhnang airfield in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the
Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's siblings in 1976 from Kandal Province, one in S-21, the other at an unknown location. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to
be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Kandal Province; imprisonment of Applicant's mother at S-21 in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the
Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment of Applicant's siblings at S-21 security centre at unspecified dates and in unspecified circumstances. Whilst this is traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to
be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Kandal Province in 1975; forced marriage of his aunt in 1977 in Kandal Province; attempted murder of Applicant's siblings in Kandal Province in 1979; imprisonment of
his uncle, a former Lon Nol soldier in S-21. While these are traumatising events, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that he suffered harm as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the death of his child due to starvation in Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1976; the murder of his wife and his small child, as well as five other family members in Bakan District in 1977; being forced to carry out
hard labour and inhumane living conditions for himself and his children, throughout the DK Regime in Bakan District; the persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is
recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in 1976 until 1979 in Bakan and Moung Ruessei Districts, Pursat Province; persecution of Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations of Applicant; murder of his wife, five children, parents and relatives in 1978 in Bakan District, Pursat Province, on accusation of being Vietnamese. Some relatives
were murdered at Tuol Seh Nhauv. Disappearance of his uncle and his cousin during evacuation from Phnom Penh in 1975. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the
Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forcibly transferred from Takeo Province to Koas Krala District, Battambang Province; being forced into hard labour and inhumane living conditions in Koas Krala District; the death due to starvation and
murder of his brother and uncle's and godfather's families in Koas Krala District in 1977; the rape and murder of his cousin in Koas Krala District, in late 1977 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004).
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour, the disappearance of his brother and the murder of his brother-in-law in Pursat Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's three siblings in 1976; murder of his siblings in Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1977; enslavement at various locations in Kravanh District, Pursat Province, from 1978. Whilst
it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of her siblings in 1976 in Phnom Kravanh District, Pursat Province; being imprisoned at Phum Veal, Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1977; being forced to carry out hard labour at various locations and
inhumane living conditions in Bakan District from 1975 until 1979; the disappearance of her cousins at Kampong Speu. While the Applicant stated in his VIF that her father was murdered along with her siblings, the Case 004 interview
clarified that he had been killed on the battlefield in 1974. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they
fall outside of the scope of the Case

The Applicant described the murder of her parents, her siblings, her parents-in-law, other members of her family-in-law and her nieces and nephews at Tuol Seh Nhauv, Bakan District, Pursat Province; the death of her child and husband;
being forced into hard labour at various locations; and experienced persecution of Khmer Krom (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case

The Applicant described the death by illness and starvation of her mother and of siblings in 1975-1976 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; the murder of her father in 1978 in Bakan District; being forced into hard labour at various locations
and inhumane living conditions in Bakan District throughout the DK Regime (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the
Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case
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The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Bakan District, Pursat Province throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's children due to starvation in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour in Bakan District, Pursat Province from 1976 until 1979; the death of her child due to starvation in 1976 and parents in 1977 in Bakan District, and of her brothers (these facts were
clarified during the Case 004 interview of the Applicant and facts and names in the VIF proved inaccurate). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which
would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case

The Applicant described being forced to carry out labour and to marry in Takmau, Kandal Province; the muder of her uncle's family, her brother and her aunts in Bakan District, Pursat Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are
traumatising events for her, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of his brothers in Bakan District, Pursat Province in 1976; being forced into hard labour at various locations and inhumane living conditions in Bakan District, throughout the DK Regime; the death of his
mother due to starvation in Bakan District (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter
which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case

The Applicant described the following: enslavement at various locations and inhumane living conditions in Bakan District, Pursat Province; murder of Applicant's father, two brothers, aunts, uncles and cousins in Bakan District in 1978;
forced marriage, and murder of Applicant's older brother. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the
scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour, the death by starvation of her parents and the murder of her relative in Bakan District, Pursat Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for her,
the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Ratanakiri Province throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's cousins (unspecified date and location); forced marriage of Applicant in 1977 in Ratanakiri
Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her brother in Ratanakiri Province; death by of Applicant's mother due to starvation in Ratanakiri Province (unspecified date); murder of Applicant's uncle in Ratanakiri
Province (unspecified date); forced marriage of Applicant's sister in 1977 in Ratanakiri Province; imprisonment of Applicant's father in S-21 and subsequent murder (unknown location) in 1977 in unspecified circumstances. Whilst this is
traumatising, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: ill-treatment, interrogation; enslavement and inhumane living conditions of her and her family members; the murder of her parent and her sister at Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that
these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the murder of her uncle and her aunt-in-law, siblings, the disappearance of her older brother; being forced into hard labour in Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do
not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour, and the disappearance and death of his family in Svay Rieng Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts provided by the
Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. In particular, the Application falls out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's mother in 1976 at Svay Rieng Province; enslavement at various locations; forced transfer from the East Zone to Moung Ruessei District in 1978 and inhumane living conditions;
forced marriage of her younger sister between 1975 and 1976 in Prey Veng Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party,
as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement; forced transfer from Svay Rieng Province to Pursat Province in 1977 and inhumane living conditions of Applicant; murder of Applicant's parents, niece and siblings at Bakan District,
Pursat Province in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced transfer from the East Zone to Pursat Province; enslavement and persecution of the East Zone Evacuees. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter
which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's parents and siblings at Svay Rieng Province; enslavement in Prey Veng and Pursat Provinces, inhumane living condition and forced transfer from Svay Rieng Province to Pursat
Province in 1978 of Applicant. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced transfer from Prey Veng Province to Moung Ruessei District, Pursat Province in 1978; enslavement at various locations of Applicant in Pursat Province; murder of her two siblings in 1976; the
Applicant also witnessed the murder of East Zone Evacuees in 1978 in Pursat Province; death of her uncle and aunt-in-law. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the
Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the disappearance of her husband; ensl living conditions at Svay Rieng; murder of her three brother with their family members. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the death of loved ones is a

traumatising event for Applicant, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The Application falls out of the scope of the Case.

nent and in}

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and forced transfer from Prey Veng Province to Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province of Applicant, at an unspecified date; murder of Applicant's father at Svay Rieng Province.
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described that her brothers and sister-in-law were forced to serve as RAK soldiers and disappeared. She also described the forced marriage of her sibling and her cousin in Prey Veng and Svay Rieng Provinces. Whilst it is
clearly recognised that these are traumatising events her, it cannot be established that she suffered as a consequence of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's father in Svay Rieng Province; forced transfer from Svay Rieng to Pursat Province in 1978; enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant. Whilst it is recognised that
these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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a ,
E § 5 NHANH Nha e The Ap]lal.icam described the following: deportation ﬁ'O[].'l Kampuchea ]§r0m to Kir.ivong Distnji({t in 1978; elnlslavement; disappearancle of Applicant's brother in Kampong Speu Province in 1975. Whilst it is recognised that these are Takeo :(é St S, Lor Climiiy
z 4= ‘5 traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. c
2 % ©° ,25 The Applicant described the following: forced labour at various locations in Sangkae (1975) and Moung Ruessei (1976) Districts and other locations in Battambang Province until 1977; disappearance of Applicant's brother at an unknown g
L > g HOEUNG Sambo = location or time; disappearance of his brother-in-law from Thmei Village in 1976; murder of his grandfather in late 1977; imprisonment and ill-treatment of Applicant in Sala Trav Village, Sangkae District, in mid-1978. Whilst it is Battambang "E Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
a = S ’E recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case. =
=
I X = . . . . - P L . . S . - . =
a N o _ The Applicant described the following: enslavement and inhumane living conditions in Tram Kak District, Takeo Province; murder of Applicant's parents, her sibling-in-law, her cousins, her aunt and uncle's families at Kraing Ta Chan ic . q
= > S CHIN Sopheap 2 . . . . .. . X . - .. . Koh Kong 2o Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
= o= & security centre in 1975. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. c
a — =
i ; & 2
a 22 ar Enslavement of Applicant and other inhumane acts at Angk Ta Saom Commune, Tram Kak District, Takeo Province throughout the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's husband, uncle, and cousins at Kraing Ta Chan security centre in 1978. = q
= > © CHIN Sokha . A .. . . . . . .. L .. Koh Kong °o  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
= &= ‘g ‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as the Application falls out of the scope of the Case. T
< ,
IS N o S 5 2 - 5 . 3 c G 3 c q i g q 5en 2
& g g SAM Sitha =8 The Applicant described the following: fo{ced marriage ofiAppllcantlm 1975 in 'Pljey Veng P.m.vmce, enslavement ofAPpllcant and her husband in Prey Veng throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising Bty Vs = |t v, Hivwg W
= 2‘ = ) events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. =
3 % " S The Applicant described being deported with his family from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; being forced to carry out hard labour at Kok Prech Commune, Kirivong District in 1978-1979; the death of his b=
< > g MAM Suo o DI11/346/3 mother due to starvation and the murder of his brothers in 1978 at Wat Pratheat in Kirivong District. According to his Case 004 interview, the Applicant's sister was forced to marry in Kirivong District. Whilst it is recognised that these are Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
a DRSS &9 traumatising events for the Applicant, they do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside the scope of the Case. &
[ 1 o -
& 7 & The Applicant described being deported from Kampuchea Krom forced to carry out hard labour; the murder her father and brother in Takeo Province, in 1978. Whilst it clearly recognised that being subjected to hard work and the loss of ic . .
= > © SAING Touch fed . . . . . . .. . . Takeo 2= Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
= o= < family members are traumatising events for Applicant, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case. c
=2 % o ’E The Applicant described being deported with her family from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province, in 1978; her enslavement and lack of medical treatment in Kirivong District from 1978 until 1979; the murder of her =
< > g BUN Nhaung g brother in Kirivong District, in late 1978; the disappearance of her uncle and his family in Kirivong District, in 1978; and the persecution of the Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for her, the facts Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
a RS g_ described by the Applicant to not permit her as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
§ %‘ I !E:_ The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and the disappearance of her parents in Kirivong District, Takeo Province, in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to i . .
= > o PAT Song . s .. .. . ’ ’ ’ Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
= o= E any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case. c
2 % — g The Applicant described being forcibly transferred with her family from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province, in 1978 and forced to carry out hard labour, while not being provided adequate medical care in Kirivong =
< > § YUNG Yann = District, the murder of Applicant's husband and son in 1978 at Preal Village, Soam Commune, Kirivong District, and persecution of Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant  Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
a RS g do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
a 7 :E- The Applicant described being deported from Kampuchea Krom, forced to carry out hard labour and the murder of her husband and children in Kirivong District, Takeo Province, in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that the loss of a husband is i . .
= > 2 OUCH Tok .. . . . . . L ; Takeo 2= Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
= o= E‘;) traumatising for the Applicant, the facts provided by do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case. c
o % - =P The Applicant described being deported from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; being forced to carry out hard labour in Kirivong District, in 1978; the murder of her siblings in 1978 in Kirivong District; the b=
< > § KHIN Suo 2 DI11/352/2 enslavement and persecution of Khmer Krom in Priel, Saom and Slaeng Villages in Kirivong District in 1978 and 1979 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
a RS ‘3 traumatising events for the Applicant, they do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
a %' = = The Applicant described being deported from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; the murder of his brothers at Wat Pratheat in 1978 in Kirivong District; his enslavement in Kirivong District in 1978, and the B
< > § MAM Seang e persecution of Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these events are traumatising for him, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the =~ Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
a oS :g scope of the Case. &
< ,
- 29 - The Applicant described being deported from Kampuchea Krom; forced labour; the murder her parents and husband in Priel Village, Kirivong District, Takeo Province, in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the i . .
= > © OU Nhey . . . .. o . . Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
= a2 &> facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case. c
bas %' =~ I!E:: The Applicant has described being deported with her family from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province, in 1978; being forced to carry out hard labour; the murder of her father in 1978 at Priel Village, Kirivong District; the =
< > § KAY Sdeung = disappearance of her husband in 1978 at Kirivong District. Whilst it is recognised that the knowledge of ill-treatment and loss of family member are traumatising events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
2 oS “E: would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
© , o
s ) = . . 5 . . 3 P o . . g . .. . . ~
& g 2 PAT Soeun 2 The Applllcam described bf:mg forccq tf’ carry out .hz.ird labour; the dlsa!)pcaran.cc of her parents in Kirivong District, Takeo Province, in 1978. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any Takeo £ Sfin Sorvromn, o (R
A &8 i@ matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case. c
- i=)
o0
5 %' ©° 3 The Applicant described being forcibly transferred from Kampuchea Krom to Kirivong District, Takeo Province in 1978; the disappearance of her brother and son in Kirivong District in 1978, in Slaeng Village (the description was clarified B
< > © YEM Yorn = DI1/357/2 through the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events for the Applicant, they do not relate to any matter which would permit her to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
a =3 2 SCO]J f th &
= 3 pe of the Case.
& % o ‘“ﬁ‘ The Applicant described the following: deportation of Applicant and her family from Kampuchea Krom to Tram Kak District, Takeo Province in 1978, through Priel Village; subsequent enslavement and inhumane living conditions of 2
< > § SER Sary Applicant in Tram Kak District; death of her two younger siblings due to starvation; persecution of Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
2 3 ,g be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. &
o . D -
S § E CHHEM Nhoem k= The Applicant discribed being deported from Kampuchea Krom to Takeo Province and the murder of her parents and siblings in Takeo Province in 1978. Whilst it is clearly recognised that the death of family members is a traumatising event Takeo £ Sin Soworn. Hong Kimsuon
= = = for the Applicant, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case. c ’ £
A = £
Q % © ,g_ The Applicant described the following: in 1975, the Applicant lived in Kirivong District and then she evaded to Vietnam until the end of 1976; deportation of Applicant back to Kirivong District with her family and subsequent murder of her =
E > § SOK Sin = husband; enslavement and inhumane living conditions of Applicant. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside Takeo »=  Sin Soworn, Hong Kimsuon
a e 2 of the scope of the Case. &
2 o £ : . ; . . : . e . . . . o 3
= 2= © The Applicant described the following: enslavement in Battambang Province throughout the DK Regime of Applicant and his family; imprisonment and ill-treatment of Applicant's cousins; murder of Applicant's younger sister in 1978 at an 2 .
=; > & PUTH Khenh = . S " P . B . .. .. . Battambang “2 Ty Srinna, Ven Pov
= &2 z unclear location. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. ([g
5 o Z z
q g g AUN Han g The Applicalm dcscribc?d the folloYvi.ng: cnslavc?m‘cm; murder at Stung To}mh execution site, other inhumane acts, in Kampong Cham Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which s @l g Ty S, Vien Rov
= = 2 would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. =
a o BN o=
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D11/485/3

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and her family in Kampong Cham Province, throughout the DK Regime; murder of her father in 1977. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not
relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced with his family to do hard labour; the murder of his brother's family in Prey Veng Province, in 1977; and the disappearance of his brother, a RAK soldier, and death of his parents. Whilst it is recognised
that these are traumatising events, it cannot be established that it is more likely than not to be true that he suffered harm as a result of one of the crimes charged.

The Applicant described being forcibly transferred to Pursat Province, and forced to do hard labour in Pursat Province; the murder of her mother-in-law's family in Battambang Province; the death of her father due to illness in Kandal
Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to do hard labour; the disappearance of her parents, sibling, and murder her brother at Kandieng District, Pursat Province. Whilst it clearly recognized that these are traumatising events, the facts
provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they all outside the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: disappearance of Applicant's parents in 1975 and of his aunt and uncle at a later date; enslavement of Applicant in Kandal Province; death of his grandfather due to starvation; murder of Applicant's
brother-in-law in 1978 (unknown location), upon accusation of being a Lon Nol soldier; murder of Applicant's brother at S-21 in 1978. While these facts are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to
be joined as a Civil Party. In particular, they fall out of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced into hard labour and other inhumane acts at various locations; ill-treatment in Bakan District, Pursat Province throughout the DK Regime; the murder of his brothers, accused of being former Lon Nol
soldiers at Kaoh Kaev Village, close to Deum Snuol, Trapeang Chorng Commune, Bakan District in 1976 (these facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising
events, the facts provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside the scope of the Case

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Rumlech cooperative, Bakan District, Pursat Province from 1976 until 1979; death by starvation and illness of Applicant's siblings in 1977 and 1976 in Bakan District,
Pursat Province; disappearance of Applicant's mother in 1977 in Bakan District, Pursat Province; death of Applicant's other relatives (no clear time frame or exact location); persecution against Khmer Krom. While these facts are
traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour and the death by starvation of his father and the murder of his uncles in Pursat Province. Whilst it is clearly recognised that these are traumatising events for him, the facts
provided by the Applicant do not relate to any matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the death by illness and starvation of his older sister and murder of his aunt in Bakan District, Pursat Province, between 1975 and1976. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to
any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: death by starvation and illness of Applicant's three children in 1976 through 1978 in Moung Ruessei District, Battambang Province; enslavement and other inhumane acts at various locations
throughout the DK Regime in Moung Ruessei District. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope
of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts at Ou Ta Paong Commune, Bakan District, Pursat Province throughout the DK Regime; death of Applicant's three siblings due to starvation at Ou Ta Paong
Commune in 1976; murder of Applicant's father at Ou Ta Paong Commune in 1976 or 1977; disappearance of Applicant's mother at unspecified location and time during the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's two uncles at Ou Ta Paong
Commune in 1978; forced marriage of Applicant's uncle at unspecified location and time during the DK Regime; murder of Applicant's aforementioned uncle at Rumlech Commune, Bakan District at unspecified time during the DK Regime.
Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and his wife and other inhumane acts committed at various locations in Sangkae District, Battambang Province, throughout the DK Regime. Whilst it is recognised that these
are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and other inhumane acts at various locations throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's two brothers; death of his parents and younger brother due to starvation in Bakan
District, Pursat Province. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described being forced to carry out hard labour; and the murder of his uncle in Pursat Province. Whilst it is recognised that the loss of family members is traumatising for the Applicant, the facts he provided do not relate to any
matter which would permit him to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Bakan District, Pursat Province, throughout the DK Regime; imprisonment of Applicant in Beung Kol security centre, Trach Kroal security centre and Samrong security
centre (1977-79); forced marriage of Applicant in Bakan District (1978). (These facts were clarified during the interview of the Applicant in Case 004). While these facts are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit
the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced transfer of Applicant from Prey Veng Province to Kandieng District, Pursat Province; enslavement of Applicant and her mother in Pursat Province from 1976 onwards; murder of Applicant's
cousin's family. While these facts are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: forced Transfer of Applicant from Svay Rieng Province to Kravanh District, Pursat Province in 1978; enslavement of Applicant in Kravanh District from 1978-1979; death of Applicant's grandfather
due to starvation in 1976 in Svay Rieng Province. While these facts are traumatising, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant as a Civil Party, as they fall out of the material scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant and family; death of younger brother due to starvation and untreated illness, in Kaoh Thum District, Kandal Province between 1976-1979; forced transfer to Phnum Lieb
Commune; enslavement and other inhumane acts; death of younger sister and mother due to starvation and untreated illness, Preah Net Preah District, Battambang Province between 1976-1979. Whilst it is recognised that these are
traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: imprisonment and ill-treatment of Applicant in Trach Kroal security centre, Bakan District in 1976. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which
would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: murder of Applicant's elder brothers, former Lon Nol soldiers and of his father in 1976 in Kandieng District, Pursat Province; murder of Applicant's aunt and cousins (unspecified time & location).
‘Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement and forced labour of Applicant in Battambang Province, throughout the DK Regime; disappearance of Applicant's parents and sibling in Pursat Province in unknown circumstances. Whilst
it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.

The Applicant described the following: enslavement of Applicant in Bakan District, Pursat Province; death of Applicant's sisters due to starvation in Bakan District; murder of Applicant's mother and her infant in 1978 in Bakan District;
murder of Applicant's mother's family in 1978 in Pursat Province; discrimination against the Khmer Krom. Whilst it is recognised that these are traumatising events, they do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be
joined as a Civil Party, as they fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described being forced into hard labour in Svay Rieng and Koh Andaet District, Takeo Province; the disappearance of her husband in Koh Andaet District, Takeo Province. Whilst it is

gnised that these are
events, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party. The facts fall outside of the scope of the Case.
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The Applicant described the following: forced transfer of Applicant's aunt and her son from Svay Rieng to Kravanh District, Pursat Province in 1977; enslavement in Pursat Province; murder of Applicant's cousin some time thereafter in Svay Rien,
Pursat Province. Whilst this is traumatising, the facts provided do not relate to any matter which would permit the Applicant to be joined as a Civil Party as they fall outside of the scope of the Case. ¥ &
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